Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

To: Councillor Boulton, Chairperson (for items 3 and 4); Councillor Stewart, the
Depute Provost, Chairperson (for item 2) and Councillors Bell (items 3 and 4),
Macdonald (item 2) and MacKenzie (all items).

Town House,
ABERDEEN 02 February 2021

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

The Members of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL are
requested to meet remotely on WEDNESDAY, 10 FEBRUARY 2021 at 10.00 am.

FRASER BELL
CHIEF OFFICER - GOVERNANCE

In accordance with UK and Scottish Government guidance, meetings of this Committee

will be held remotely as required. In these circumstances the meetings will be recorded
and thereafter published on the Council’s website at the following link.

BUSINESS

1.1 Procedure Notice (Pages 5 - 6)

COPIES OF THE RELEVANT PLANS / DRAWINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR
INSPECTION IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING AND WILL BE DISPLAYED AT
THE MEETING

MEMBERS PLEASE NOTE THAT THE FOLLOWING LINK WILL TAKE YOU TO
THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

Local Development Plan

TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE APPOINTED OFFICER TO REFUSE THE
FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS



https://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=284
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/development-plan

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PLANNING ADVISER - GAVIN EVANS - CHAIRPERSON COUNCILLOR

STEWART

Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage - Fairhill, 275 North
Deeside Road, Milltimber, Aberdeen - 200544 (Pages 7 - 32)

Delegated Report, Original Application Form and Decision Notice (Pages
33-48)

Members, please note that all plans and supporting documents relevant to
the review can be viewed online here and by entering the application
reference number 200544.

Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted (Pages 49 - 50)

Notice of Review with Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant /
Agent (Pages 51 - 70)

Members, please note that all plans and supporting documents relevant to
the review can be viewed online here and by entering the application
reference number 200544.

Determination - Reasons for Decision

Members, please note that reasons should be based against Development
Plan policies and any other material considerations.

Consideration of Conditions to be Attached to the Application - if Members
are Minded to Over-Turn the Decision of the Case Officer

PLANNING ADVISER - GAVIN EVANS - CHAIRPERSON COUNCILLOR

BOULTON

Formation of pitched roof to an existing garage to from store and single
storey workshop extension to rear - 2 Gladstone Place Aberdeen - 200557
(Pages 71 - 102)

Delegated Report, Original Application Form and Decision Notice (Pages
103 - 118)

Members, please note that all plans and supporting documents relevant to
the review can be viewed online here and by entering the application
reference number 200557.

Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted (Pages 119 - 120)

Notice of Review with Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant /
Agent (Pages 121 - 146)



https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Members, please note that all plans and supporting documents relevant to
the review can be viewed online here and by entering the application
reference number 200557.

Determination - Reasons for Decision

Members, please note that reasons should be based against Development
Plan policies and any other material considerations.

Consideration of Conditions to be Attached to the Application - if Members
are Minded to Over-Turn the Decision of the Case Officer

PLANNING ADVISER - GAVIN EVANS - CHAIRPERSON COUNCILLOR

BOULTON

Erection of single storey extension to side and formation of carport and
garden room/gym - the Highfield, Borrowstone Road, Aberdeen - 200265
(Pages 147 - 184)

Delegated Report, Original Application Form and Decision Notice. (Pages
185 - 204)

Members, please note that all plans and supporting documents relevant to
the review can be viewed online here and by entering the application
reference number 200265.

Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted (Pages 205 - 206)

Notice of Review with Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant /
Agent (Pages 207 - 228)

Members, please note that all plans and supporting documents relevant to
the review can be viewed online here and by entering the application
reference number 200265.

Determination - Reasons for Decision

Members, please note that reasons should be based against Development
Plan policies and any other material considerations.

Consideration of Conditions to be Attached to the Application - if Members
are Minded to Over-Turn the Decision of the Case Officer

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Lynsey

McBain on lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk / tel 01224 522123


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/




Agenda Item 1.1

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PROCEDURE NOTE

GENERAL

1. The Local Review Body of Aberdeen City Council (the LRB) must at all
times comply with (one) the provisions of the Town and Country Planning
(Schemes of Delegation and Local Review Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2008 (the regulations), and (two) Aberdeen City Council’s
Standing Orders.

2. In dealing with a request for the review of a decision made by an
appointed officer under the Scheme of Delegation adopted by the Council
for the determination of “local” planning applications, the LRB
acknowledge that the review process as set out in the regulations shall be
carried out in stages.

3. As the first stage and having considered the applicant’s stated preference
(if any) for the procedure to be followed, the LRB must decide how the
case under review is to be determined.

4, Once a notice of review has been submitted interested parties (defined as
statutory consultees or other parties who have made, and have not
withdrawn, representations in connection with the application) will be
consulted on the Notice and will have the right to make further
representations within 14 days.

Any representations:

e made by any party other than the interested parties as defined
above (including those objectors or Community Councils that did
not make timeous representation on the application before its
delegated determination by the appointed officer) or

e made outwith the 14 day period representation period referred to
above

cannot and will not be considered by the Local Review Body in

determining the Review.

5. Where the LRB consider that the review documents (as defined within the
regulations) provide sufficient information to enable them to determine the
review, they may (as the next stage in the process) proceed to do so
without further procedure.

6. Should the LRB, however, consider that they are not in a position to
determine the review without further procedure, they must then decide
which one of (or combination of) the further procedures available to them
in terms of the regulations should be pursued. The further procedures
available are:-

(@  written submissions;
(b) the holding of one or more hearing sessions;
(c) an inspection of the site.

Page 5



If the LRB do decide to seek further information or representations prior
to the determination of the review, they will require, in addition to deciding
the manner in which that further information/representations should be
provided, to be specific about the nature of the information/
representations sought and by whom it should be provided.

In adjourning a meeting to such date and time as it may then or later
decide, the LRB shall take into account the procedures outlined within
Part 4 of the regulations, which will require to be fully observed.

DETERMINATION OF REVIEW

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Once in possession of all information and/or representations considered
necessary to the case before them, the LRB will proceed to determine the
review.

The starting point for the determination of the review by the LRB will be
Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, which
provides that:-
“‘where, in making any determination under the planning Acts,
regard is to be had to the Development Plan, the determination
shall be made in accordance with the Plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.”

In coming to a decision on the review before them, the LRB will require:-

(@ to consider the Development Plan position relating to the
application proposal and reach a view as to whether the proposal
accords with the Development Plan;

(b)  to identify all other material considerations arising (if any) which
may be relevant to the proposal;

(c) to weigh the Development Plan position against the other material
considerations arising before deciding whether the Development
Plan should or should not prevail in the circumstances.

In determining the review, the LRB will:-

€) uphold the appointed officers determination, with or without
amendments or additions to the reason for refusal; or

(b) overturn the appointed officer's decision and approve the
application with or without appropriate conditions.

The LRB will give clear reasons for its decision. The Committee clerk will
confirm these reasons with the LRB, at the end of each case, in
recognition that these will require to be intimated and publicised in full
accordance with the regulations.

Page 6



ﬁz uuuuuuuuu Sy

LOCAL REVIEW BODY

NG

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

200544 /DPP- Review against refusal of planning permission for:
Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage

Fairhill, 275 North Deeside Road, Milltimber

T°Z Wa)| epusby



Location Plan

|

&

Rosewood




Location — Aerial Photo




Location Plan

4
o
<
O
o
O
<
Z
O
-
Q
(18]
o=
[+ 4
E-
a5

SITER




Photo — boundary wall at SE corner of site




ion Road East

ad
(1)
)
(Vy)
£
(@
p .
[
2
o0
=

— Look

Photo




Photo — Looking NW from Station Road East

Wi

’




Existing and Proposed
Site Plan

The lorge pruce o 1o main 9 1o thew rik of [:]
have.

1 srecommended they be removed within the next 5 d foliowing

5 New planting of 10 frees (shown In pae blue).
]

-6 x diver birch (Betula pendulka)
2 x Sessie ook [Quercus petraea)
2x Scots pine [Finus sytvestris)

10 ¥ue: 10 be remaved due 1o
pooe condtion and imited e
expectancy.

~ Proposed Garoge:

N:nhbommqndg

of existing hard-standing and shed

dig resurfacing of old driveway required fo
10015 of ¥ees 1o be tesained.

No-
~protect

Sub-surtace surface woler soakaway fo be
min

droin, rood of
1oilway & SOmetres trom o spring or borehole
used for drinking woter
5
- :
Bistng Howse i
—d
g4
—s
ik ot old y required fe

conditon ang
expaciancy.

protect 1ools of Yees lo be redained.

3 trees 10 be semoved due 1o poor
mited



Proposed Site Plan Extract

IR
|




Proposed Garage Elevations (1)

| 5P ricige vant

i
y o T rood T

i
Rt ot Gveire
LA
o v
)
Q
o)
[ I
o
g s
i ] T
§S =i 2
s
WEST ELEVATION 1:50 EAST ELEVATION 1:50

* Stone-clad frontage and red tile roof to match house
* Rendered rear wall
» Garage roller shutter door materials/finish not specified



Proposed Garage Elevations

3!
2
o
@
Roofline of oriqi&nol application L
1 |
0

French door fo be used for escape
from fire. Min 0.33m? openable area
with at least 450mm high and
450mm wide opening. Bottom of
openable area to be max 1100mm
above fioor level

Richard Burbridge Contemporary
glass panel balustrade system (or eq
app) installed & fixed in

o g m ! & 2
tions. To form P, N _! Vv 4
tive barrier around ! g £

(Eiattorm with max

gap between
and to be installed min
1100mm above floor level.
Beed 1o be able fo resist loads in
lance with BS 6399:Part 1:
.74kN/m horizontal load).

Femhill Stone
to match house

Gently sloping concrete
access ramp

GrL |
1

SOUTH ELEVATION 1:50

T I Bxisting wall

(2)

i ig
| |£
| I5
2 . W7 . '3
: :’; Roofline of ongnAnoI application
i o
| e
~

Red file roof to match existinq dwelling

White fascia and bageboon*s

K-Rend to Client's choice

New juliet balcony to client’s Lhoice

=

dims tbc onsite

uPVC external
doorset to
chients choice

Iz

1‘ A

L} d

|
Step down to ground level with 150mm rise

NORTH ELEVATION 1:50

* Stone frontage returns around corners
* Rendered side walls

* uPVC exterior door

e White fascia and bargeboards

* Red tile roof



Proposed Garage: Ground Floor Plan

Existing Garden Wall

*s] @s per specification

+ notes

High & low ’ TN, A T : {

leved vents // A / B

asper 1P A AT ; High & low
speclﬁcnml‘-?; // / R T, = ~ . level vents

notes 1— 1\

foul .
rainoge =
430

e
0

=y
hat)

}
£ A

700D

8T abed

@a@

5620
\,-]" _
|

li

@
|

eI
u-\_

A
i

I
I
I
[
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
|
|
I

I\ j Exp.
| z
Ik_ — _._ L_ - ___/ E
SeE
Bectric doar ?’U
ROLLER SHUTTER 2
nooR E
= e
M= —-—- =
5000 To connect fa

new surface
water soakaway




Proposed Garage: First Floor Plan

Line of Boundg

Ly

N I VUV LR
3VP connected to ridge v P T AT
R~ s . "

Mew
Rrooflight
Mew
Raafighit

PAARSARI: TR

?

= 2160 4725 B
- e, I o
- kN

il

=
b}
L

— e B e = S P g 1 B R

T5E STORE @ = . \ |

1500

6T obed
:
X
§

@ G === -=7000-=-=- - AR 8-|----@
Coomb B |= 900 | Downlighter fo be locoted ot a maximurm of 1 per rd |
we W _2m.Gopsonandaround recessed downlightersto 1 il
— celling to be sealed with coulk to imit ar infiliration 7

P s in acCordance with 85 92502007 T
H i

= 18 £y —E

it

ik x ;5

] =3y 2% 53

= = «  F o




Proposed Garage: Sections

Openable area of escape roof
light is min 450mm high and
wide with an unobstructed
openable area of af least
0.33m? Window to be not more
than 1100mm above the floor.

1100

Roofline of original application

ROOF LIGHT EMERGENCY ESCAPE
WINDOW SECTION 1:25

Ny % STORE

2402

Dpc, min 150mm above
existing walllevel. DPC to
lop beneath breather
membrone

Code 5lead

1 Garage ceiling to be = Alu capping
lined with 2no. layers =1 | dressed over
of plasterboard = | | existing

=1 + wall head

IKOpro’, cold applied
bituminous emulsion
waterproofer oppled fo
external face of existing wol
(oppied as per BBA
Certificate)

0

12mm bitumen impregnated
fibreboard to protect
waterproofing from puncture

Mortar and bitumen tanking
to inner face of stonework

o~ 7 =
(E / \| /’f/? —h

EXISTING WALL DETAIL 1:20



The lorge spruce trees odjocent to main road ore of Tree Survey Drawk
limited long term potential due to their increasing risk of ¥ 9

H Jtorn donage and the significant concequences this could 275 NORTH DEESIDE ROAD
Iree Survey Drawin o si s
It Is recommended they ke removed within the next 5 years ABERDEEN

and new planting showld ke wndertoken following the remowval.
Scole 11000 Approx. ot A4

94 g y-\. To b o In- tion with
600 .4 ‘?“ﬁi&“ 590 TP‘:E ;u:f:y Rept;‘l{u;:rcnl"\q ;ﬂEO
oo\ 602 LIRS s
604 ._4.“ ; = Struen Dolgleish Arboriculture
.‘fﬁ—\“ / » 88
605 o9 .":f.‘"-.‘ B s, =
A [, e i a7
606 o L% QN
615110 co7 SIZNE ‘ﬁ .'." 8
W = g War Ang = " EAX]] S 585
613 L NS AR
BEN 'z. L AL SN, 504
614 ﬁ""é‘-‘ﬂi}j‘ “';.' Nsss ook ﬁ'\\
BN Qg S

),

IR G VAN
s \l&:;\? TN

16 { he: \ ) ll.uCl trees 1:'0
o ; W "3 e rEmovel
617 m‘*—'—"..‘&fq' : \ ¥ e
.‘ £ Y - o cardltion
\ﬂ'-*., N and lmited
7N N J \ ! life
r’. ) 2 expectancy.
|_ :
A
623
N
o 624 \ii’
(¢
N
H
N 625 e K=,
e Y,
resurfacing ) < e
f ald ™
grlvuewuy N A ‘_ -‘.l
required to ‘c‘,-q'.
protect L
t: ¥ d = |
e AU ¥ <),
retalned. %&" 563
The proposed "
construction of the ‘ 562

rew 1 should
renngrl::leg:r of the

rooting areas of 3 trees to
trees to ke retolned ke removed
due to

condition anc
limited life
expectoncy.

Tree Protection
Borriers should be
erected to ensure
ln‘b"‘ﬂl ta be ;ttahﬂl

construction process.

D



Tree Survey — Extract from Schedule

570

571

Sitka spruce

Sitka spruce

21

21

520

Struan Dalgleish Arboriculture

2|56 |8

Early

mature

Early

mature

Poor

Restricted spread within group of similar at garden boundary.
Overhanging tarmac driveway. Swallen roots lifting surface.

Restricted spread within group of similar at garden boundary.
Appears to hawe lost top and regenerated new crown from upswept
branches.

=10yrs

6.24

6.72

Remowve and replace

Within 12
with better tree of long months
term potential.
Remowve and replace
with better tree of long Within 12
months
term potential.
11th March 2020

BS 5837:2012 Tree Survey Schedule

275 Morth Deeside Road, Milltimber, Aberdeen

Tag Dia. Crown Saread {m) Age Rotenticn | RPARadis
Species Ht. {m} Q. fm Condition Comments Life Exp. Recommendation Timescale
_U - — ulglslw Closs Category {m}
(g Ea Restricted spread within group of similar at garden boundary. Tall Remowve and replace Within 12
(-D 572 Sitka spruce 21 560 3|5|2)|z2 3 matEe Poor and stralght with tips overhanging road. Resinous bleeding from <10yrs u 6.72 with better tree of long monl:lﬁ
loweer trunk. Unviable without shelter from nelghbouring trees. term potential.
[\) Early Restricted spread within group of similar at garden boundary. Tall Remowve and replace \Within 12
573 Sitka spruce 21 540 4| 3/3|4 B mature Poor and stralght with tips. Swollan roots lifting surface of tarmac <10yrs u b.48 with better tree of long months
driveway at base. Unviable without shelter from neighbouring trees. term potential.
omi Restricted spread within group of similar at garden boundary. Remowve and replace \Within 12
574 Sitka spruce 12 330 3,3| 2|3 1 mature Poor Overhanging tarmac driveway. Unviable without shelter from <10yrs u 396 with better tree of long months
nelghbouring trees. term potential.
Remowve and replace
Ea Restrictad d. Exposed to wind. Bias towards and hangi Within 12
575 | Morway spruce 19 380 3 .4|3)|2 1 iy Poor sirictad spres oW a5 TowaArds and cverhanging <10yrs u 4.56 with better tree of long "
mature garden boundary and road. Bark splitting on lower trunk. months
term potential.
Early Restricted spread overhanging garden boundary and road. In severe Remowve and replace \Within 12
576 | MNomway spruce 20 340 24|33 2 : Poor decline with small sparse crown and no lower branches. Exposed to | <10yrs u 4.08 with better tree of long ths
mature wind. term potential. man
Restricted spread with bias towards house and garden. Phaeclus Remou and replace Within 12
577 | Sitkaspruce | 18 | 580 | 3 |3 | 3| 6| 3 | Mature| Poor P g <10yrs u 636 | with better tree of long
fungal bracket at base. Swollen roots lifting tarmac driveway. maonths
term potential.
Seml Remove and replace Within 12
578 Sitka spruce 12 50 21321 4 mature Poor Restricted spread suppressed by larger trees. <10yrs u 3 with better tree of long months
term potential.
Remowve and replace
570 | Sitkaspruce | 21 | 480 |4 | 3| 3| 6| 4 |Matwe| Poor | PEStiCted spread with bias towards house and garden. Overhanging |, u 576 | withbetter treecflang | "N 12
driveway. Umviable without shelter from nelghbouring trees. months

term potential.



Tree Survey - Photo

~ O T - - M Lk
» i ol ;2o N

Photo 2 — Spruce trees 570 to 579 occur at the edge of the old driveway.




Tree Survey - Photo

proximity to the house.




Reasons for Decision

Stated in full in decision notice. Key points:

G abed

Inappropriate scale and massing which does not reflect the typical proportions of an ancillary building.

Appearance would be overly dominant from outside the site, fails to respect the context of the
surrounding area, nor any established pattern of development, and would have a negative visual
impact on its established character.

Would result in the loss of 13 protected mature trees which form part of a continuous line of trees
along the eastern boundary of the site (TPO 225)

Whilst tree removal may be justified due to limited long-term potential, appropriate replanting should
seek to ensure the existing landscape character and amenity is maintained and protected in the long
term

Proposal considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by
Design), H1 (Residential Areas) and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the ALDP, and associated

Supplementary Guidance on Householder Development.

No material planning considerations identified that justify approval.



Applicant’s Case

Stated in supporting statement. Key points:

9z abed .

Highlights that planning officer has accepted the principle of a garage and that the reasons for refusal
relate to scale/height

Draws attention to the size of the site, relative to the size of the proposed garage, and to the
reductions made by the applicant from initial submission (circa 700mm reduction in height to ridge)

Highlights that the existing outbuilding presents a gable to Station Road, whereas this proposal
presents a sloping roof, with the boundary wall and tree canopies offering further screening

Notes that the necessary tree removals have been recommended by a qualified consultant due to
their existing condition, rather than to enable development, and the applicant is committed to
undertaking necessary replacement planting

Contends that any alternative location on the site would result in greater harm to healthy trees

Explains that the garage and upper floor accommodation is required for the storage of landscaping
equipment, parking of family vehicles, and provision of a recreational space/home office at upper level

Notes that achieving minimum 2m headroom is essential to making that space useable, but that the
proposed garage still retains the appearance of a single storey building

Makes reference to exchanges with the case officer regarding amendments to make the scheme
acceptable

Notes that Supplementary Guidance does allow for upper floor accommodation



e |s this overdevelopment?

 Would it have an ‘unacceptable impact on the character and
amenity’ of the area?

o
QD
(@)
D
N
~

 Would it result in the loss of open space?

* Does it comply with Supplementary Guidance?
(e.g. Householder Development Guide SG)

ﬁz ooooooooo F

R

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



All dev’t must “ensure high standards of design and have a strong and
distinctive sense of place which is a result of context appraisal,
detailed planning, quality architecture, craftsmanship and materials”.

g Proposals will be assessed against the following six essential qualities:
g - Distinctive
- Welcoming
- Safe and pleasant
- Easy to move around
- Adaptable
- Resource-efficient
T
Lo
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



o
o)

Q
D
N
O

- BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Presumption against development that would result in the loss of, or
damage to, trees and woodlands that contribute to nature
conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate change
adaptation and mitigation.

Buildings and services should be sited so as to minimise adverse
impacts on existing and future trees.

Measures should be taken for the protection and long-term
management of existing trees and new planting, both during and after
construction.

Applications affecting trees to include details of tree protection
measures, compensatory planting etc.



* Proposed development should be architecturally compatible with
original house and surrounding area (design, scale etc)

e Should not ‘dominate or overwhelm’ original house. Should remain
visually subservient.

 Development should not result in a situation where the amenity of
neighbouring properties would be adversely affected (e.g. privacy,
daylight, general amenity)

o
o)
Q
D
w
o

* Approvals pre-dating this guidance do not represent a ‘precedent’

e * No more than 50% of the front or rear curtilage shall be covered by

-
%’a&,jg‘é: development.

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



Qutbuildings

In many cases ancillary buildings may be classed as permitted
development. Where planning permission is required, the following
rules will apply:

* Qutbuildings must always be subordinate in scale to the
dwellinghouse and two storey outbuildings will generally not be
permitted;

* Where a second storey is to be accommodated within a pitched
roofspace, outbuildings should retain the impression of being single
storey in height and dormers will not be permitted as a means of
gaining additional headroom;

o
jab)

«Q
D
w
=

* Access to an upper floor should be situated internally;

* Qutbuildings should not have a negative impact on the character of
the surrounding area;

* Where highly visible and especially in conservation areas, detached
garages should be of a scale and design that respects the prevalent
context of the surrounding area;

* Proposals will be assessed on their impact on the amenity of the

g o area (e.g. loss of daylight/privacy) in the same way as extensions;

3 Tilﬁ’ i
E\I&i’\@ \SS\ Outbuildings will not usually be acceptable in front gardens because
ABERDEEN of the damaging impact development forward of a front building line
CITY COUNCIL can have on the visual character of an area.



o
jab)
«Q
D
w
N

- BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Zoning: Do members consider that the proposed works would adversely affect
the character or amenity of the area, as set out in policy H1? Do the proposed
alterations accord with the relevant SG and its content on domestic garages,
also tied to policy H1?

Trees: Do members consider that the impact on existing trees is consistent with
policy NE5 and, if so, does the proposal involve appropriate provision for
replacement planting?

Design: Is the proposal of sufficient design quality (D1), appropriate to its
context?

1. Does the proposal comply with the Development Plan when considered as a
whole?

2. Do other material considerations weigh for or against the proposal? Are
they of sufficient weight to overcome any conflict with the Development Plan?

Decision — state clear reasons for decision

Conditions? (if approved — Planning Adviser can assist)



Agenda Item 2.2

=,
-

ol
ABERDEEN

P IR
¥ COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100246418-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Description of Proposal

Please describe accurately the work proposed: * (Max 500 characters)

New Detached Garage

Has the work already been started and/ or completed? *

No D Yes - Started D Yes — Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Page 1 of 6

Page 33



Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number:

First Name: *

Last Name: *

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

CM Design
You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Craig Building Name: St Brendans
Mackay Building Number: | ©°
01343540020 f\s(i(rj;Z?)M South Guildry Street
Address 2:
Town/City: * Elgin
Country: * United Kingdom
Postcode: * V30 1QN

Email Address: *

office@cmdesign.biz

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr
Other Title:

First Name: * N

Last Name: * Gilchrist

Company/Organisation

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1
(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

Fairhill

275 North Deeside Road

Aberdeen

Scotland

AB13 OHA

Email Address: *

office@cmdesign.biz

Page 34

Page 2 of 6




Site Address Details

Aberdeen City Council

Planning Authority:

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

FAIRHILL

275 NORTH DEESIDE ROAD

MILLTIMBER

ABERDEEN

MILLTIMBER

Northing

801358

Easting

385734

Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? * |:| Yes No
Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? * Yes |:| No

If yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if
any are to be cut back or felled.

Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new or altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *

|:| Yes No

If yes, please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing, altered or new access points, highlighting the changes

you proposed to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? *

D Yes No

Page 35

Page 3 of 6




Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 — TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? * Yes |:| No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? * D Yes No

Certificate Required

The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate

Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

| hereby certify that —

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at

the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: Craig Mackay
On behalf of: Mr N Gilchrist
Date: 31/03/2020

Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 4 of 6

Page 36




Checklist — Application for Householder Application

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed

invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.
a) Have you provided a written description of the development to which it relates?. * Yes

b) Have you provided the postal address of the land to which the development relates, or if the land in question Yes
has no postal address, a description of the location of the land? *

c) Have you provided the name and address of the applicant and, where an agent is acting on behalf of the Yes
applicant, the name and address of that agent.? *

d) Have you provided a location plan sufficient to identify the land to which it relates showing the situation of the Yes
land in relation to the locality and in particular in relation to neighbouring land? *. This should have a north point
and be drawn to an identified scale.

e) Have you provided a certificate of ownership? * Yes
f) Have you provided the fee payable under the Fees Regulations? * Yes
g) Have you provided any other plans as necessary? * Yes

Continued on the next page

DNO
I:lNO

I:‘NO

I:lNO

I:lNO

DNO
DNO

A copy of the other plans and drawings or information necessary to describe the proposals
(two must be selected). *

You can attach these electronic documents later in the process.
Existing and Proposed elevations.

Existing and proposed floor plans.

D Cross sections.

|:| Site layout plan/Block plans (including access).

|:| Roof plan.

|:| Photographs and/or photomontages.

Additional Surveys — for example a tree survey or habitat survey may be needed. In some instances you D Yes
may need to submit a survey about the structural condition of the existing house or outbuilding.

A Supporting Statement — you may wish to provide additional background information or justification for your D Yes
Proposal. This can be helpful and you should provide this in a single statement. This can be combined with a
Design Statement if required. *

No

No

You must submit a fee with your application. Your application will not be able to be validated until the appropriate fee has been

Received by the planning authority.

Declare — For Householder Application

1, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for planning permission as described in this form and the accompanying

Plans/drawings and additional information.
Declaration Name: Mr Craig Mackay

Declaration Date: 08/05/2020

Page 37

Page 5 of 6




Payment Details

Online payment: ABSP00005171
Payment date: 08/05/2020 08:56:00

Created: 08/05/2020 08:56

Page 38

Page 6 of 6




APPLICATION REF NO. 200544/DPP

BON ACCORD

Development Management
Strategic Place Planning

ABERDEEN Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street

Aberdeen, AB10 1AB
CITY COUNCIL Tel: 01224 523470 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

DECISION NOTICE

The Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Detailed Planning Permission

CM Design

St Brendans

69 South Guildry Street
Elgin

V30 1QN

on behalf of Mr N Gilchrist

With reference to your application validly received on 13 May 2020 for the following
development:-

Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage
at Fairhill, 275 North Deeside Road, Milltimber

Aberdeen City Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act
hereby REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the said development in accordance
with the particulars given in the application form and the following plans and
documents:

Drawing Number Drawing Type
20021.GILCHRIST.07BW B Location Plan & Proposed Elevations, Floor Plans &
Section

20021.GILCHRIST.09BW A Proposed Site Plan & Tree Management Plan
200021.GILCHRIST.08BW Proposed Foundation, Roof Plan & Spec
Tree Survey Drawing

REASON FOR DECISION
The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:-

The proposed garage development is deemed to be of an inappropriate scale and
massing which does not reflect the typical proportions of an ancillary building. It

Page 39


mailto:pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

would appear overly dominant from outwith the site, fails to respect the context of the
surrounding area, nor any established pattern of development, and would have a
negative visual impact on its established character. Furthermore, the proposal if
approved would result in the loss of 13 protected mature trees which form part of a
continuous line of trees along the eastern boundary of the site (TPO 225), and whilst
their removal may be necessary due to their limited long-term potential, appropriate
replanting should in the first instance seek to ensure the existing landscape character
and amenity which they contribute towards is suitably maintained and protected in
the long term, rather than enabling development. The proposal is therefore
considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by
Design), H1 (Residential Areas) and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the Aberdeen
City Local Development Plan, and does not address the expectations of the Council's
Supplementary Guidance on Householder Development. There are no material
planning considerations which would warrant approval of planning permission is this
instance.

Date of Signing 17 November 2020

Do Lo

Daniel Lewis
Development Management Manager

Page 40



IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS DECISION

DETAILS OF ANY VARIATION MADE TO ORIGINAL PROPOSAL, AS AGREED
WITH APPLICANT (S32A of 1997 Act)

None.

RIGHT OF APPEAL
THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority —

a) to refuse planning permission;

b) to refuse approval, consent or agreement requried by a condition imposed on
a grant of planning permission;

c) to grant planning permission or any approval, consent or agreement subject to
conditions,

the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under section
43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months
from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be made on a ‘Notice of
Review’ form available from the planning authority or at www.eplanning.scot.

Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to Strategic Place Planning
(address at the top of this decision notice).

SERVICE OF PURCHASE NOTICE WHERE INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY A
PLANNING DECISION

If permission to develop land is refused and the owner of the land claims that the
land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in it's existing state and
cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any
development that would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on the
planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the land’s
interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 41


http://www.eplanning.scot/

Page 42



- BON ACCORD ’

ABERDEEN  Report of Handling

CITY COUNCIL

Strategic Place Planning

Fairhill, 275 North Deeside Road, Milltimber, Aberdeen
Site Address: AB13 OHA
ggspcl:iﬁg?ig?]: Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage
Application Ref: 200544/DPP
Application Type: Detailed Planning Permission
Application Date: 13 May 2020
Applicant: Mr N Gilchrist
Ward: Lower Deeside
Community Council: | Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber
Case Officer: Jane Forbes

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description

The application site is located on the south side of North Deeside Road, Milltimber, at its junction
with Station Road East, and extends to an area of some 4130m2. The site comprises a 2 storey,
detached dwelling house with single integral garage. The dwelling house is centrally located within
the plot, with quite extensive garden ground to the front, side and rear, and is well screened by
mature trees, all of which are protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO No 225). A drive
provides access off North Deeside Road, splitting in two as it extends south within the site, with the
eastern section delivering a route to the rear entrance to the dwelling and an area of hardstanding,
whilst the western section provides a route to the front of the property with access to the existing
integral garage, and a further area of hardstanding. To the south east of the dwelling and running
parallel at a distance of some 8 metres from the eastern boundary of the site, lies an overgrown
path which has been identified as an old driveway. The path extends from the hardstanding which
lies to the east of the property to the southern boundary of the site.

Relevant Planning History

Application Number  Proposal Decision Date

151840 T1 — Copper Beech — fell as significant rot at Approved Unconditionally
base, dangerous and leaning towards house on 15.12.2015

150059 Single storey rear extension and patio areas Approved Conditionally on
to rear of existing dwelling house 26.03.2015

140534 Erect new decking area Approved Unconditionally

on 13.06.2014

Page 43



Application Reference: 200544/DPP Page 2 of 6

140179 Removal of 12 trees + minor works to 22 Approved Conditionally on
17.04.2014

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal

Detailed planning permission is sought for the erection of a double garage to the east of the
dwellinghouse and along the eastern boundary of the application site which is delineated by a 1.6
metre high boundary wall, beyond which lies Station Road East.

The proposed garage would measure 7.6 metres wide and 7.6 metres deep (57.8m?2) with a ridge
height of 6 metres and eaves level of 2.8 metres, delivering an internal floor area of just under 80m2,
The garage would incorporate a 5m wide double garage door opening to the west elevation, a single
door opening to the north elevation, 6 rooflights with 3 each to the east and west elevations, and
fully glazed French doors with Juliet balcony design on the south elevation. Internal stairs would
provide access to the upper floor which includes a shower room and is identified as a store on the
submitted plans. The proposed garage would be finished in a smooth render with Fernhill stone
detailing on the west elevation, wrapping around the gable ends, and a red tile roof to match the
existing dwellinghouse. Along the eastern boundary, a lead flashing would be introduced to the top
of the existing boundary wall where it would join with the eastern garage wall.

To facilitate the construction of the garage, it is proposed to fell 7 trees that lie within the footprint of
the proposed garage. The Tree Survey Report also identifies a further 6 trees to be felled; 3 trees
to the north of the proposed garage and 3 trees close to south boundary. All the trees identified for
felling are Spruce trees.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA068LBZHRWO0O0

e Supporting Statement
e Tree Survey Drawing, Report & Schedule

CONSULTATIONS

Cults, Bieldside and Milltimber Community Council — No comments

REPRESENTATIONS

None

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where, in
making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017)

Page 44


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA068LBZHRW00
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QA068LBZHRW00

Application Reference: 200544/DPP Page 3 of 6

Policy H1 (Residential Areas)
Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design)
Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodland)

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)
The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (Proposed ALDP) was approved at the Council
meeting of 2 March 2020. The Proposed ALDP constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what the
final content of the next adopted ALDP should be, and is now a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications. The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 will continue
to be the primary document against which applications are considered. The exact weight to be given
to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific
applications will depend on whether —
+ these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues Report; and,
» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report; and,
* the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. The following policies of the Proposed
ALDP are relevant to this application:

Policy H1 (Residential Areas)
Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking)
Policy D2 (Amenity)

Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands)

Supplementary Guidance and Technical Advice Notes
Householder Development Guide

EVALUATION

Principle of Development

The application site lies within an area zoned as residential within the Aberdeen City Local
Development Plan (2017). The proposal which is for the erection of a domestic garage must
therefore be considered against Policy H1 (Residential Areas), which states that within existing
residential areas, proposals for new development and householder development will be approved
in principle if it:

1. Does not constitute over development;

2. Does not have an unacceptable impact on the character and amenity of the surrounding area,;
3. Does not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space; and

4. Complies with Supplementary Guidance.

The proposed garage development lies within the curtilage of a residential property and would not
impact on existing open space, and bearing in mind the application site extends to an area of some
0.4ha, including the extensive garden ground which surrounds the existing dwellinghouse, neither
would the proposal result in overdevelopment.

The proposal would therefore be deemed acceptable in principle provided it does not adversely
affect the character and amenity of the surrounding area; and is compliant with the relevant
Supplementary Guidance ‘Householder Development Guide’. The application must also be
evaluated against all remaining relevant policy, with any impact resulting from the proposed
development being fully assessed. All the aforementioned issues are fully evaluated below.

Proposed Scale and Design of Development

Page 45



Application Reference: 200544/DPP Page 4 of 6

To determine the effect of the proposal on the character of the area it is hecessary to assess it in
the context of Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design) of the Aberdeen City Local Development
Plan. This policy recognises that not all development will be of a scale that makes a significant
placemaking impact but recognises that good design and detail adds to the attractiveness of the
built environment.

In addition to this, the Council’'s SG ‘Householder Development Guide’ sets out specific guidance
relating to outbuildings which it classifies as ‘detached buildings within a dwelling’s curtilage that are
used in association with the enjoyment of the residential use of the property, e.g. garages, sheds
and greenhouses’. The SG highlights that such buildings are traditionally single storey in height,
with either a flat or pitched roof, but does accept that it may be possible to accommodate an
additional storey within the roofspace. The SG outlines certain criteria which must be applied in
terms of the scale and general design of such ancillary buildings, and this includes that they should
remain subordinate in scale to the dwellinghouse; retain the impression of being single storey in
height; that access to any upper floor should be situated internally; they should not have a negative
impact on the character of the surrounding area, and where highly visible, should be of a scale and
design that respects the prevalent context of the surrounding area.

In this instance, taking into account the location of the proposed garage against the eastern
boundary of the site, and given the considerable scale of development being sought (7.6m long x
7.6m wide x 6m high) which provides an internal floor area of just under 80m? and therefore not
dissimilar to that of a 2 or 3 bedroom residential property, it is considered that the proposed
development would have a significant visual impact and appear particularly dominant from Station
Road East. Itis accepted that the garage building would lie to the rear of the existing boundary wall
which serves to enclose the site, however its scale and general massing is such that the 1.6 metre
high wall would provide relatively limited screening. Following submission of the application and as
a result of concerns raised, some amendment has been made to the original proposal, with a
reduction from 6.7m to 6m to the roof ridge of the building and the inclusion of internal stairs to
provide access to the upper level. However these amendments alone fail to provide the reduction in
scale and massing necessary (and requested by the Planning Authority) to deliver development
more typical in proportions to that of a domestic garage and which suitably respects the prevalent
context of the area, rather the overall scale and massing of the proposed development and resulting
adverse visual impact on the character of the area would remain significant.

The existing character of the eastern boundary of the site in relation to the streetscape is very much
that of a continuous line of mature trees. Therefore it is also important to recognise that the proposal
would result in the removal of a number of these trees, and whilst the legitimacy for their removal
will be discussed below, it is apparent such tree loss would not only impact on existing screening
but would also clearly affect the landscape character of the area.

Whilst acknowledging that there is an existing garden shed which lies along the eastern boundary
of the site, and just south of the proposed location for the garage, this is by comparison a reasonably
proportioned, 5m x 5m outbuilding, which has its gable end facing towards Station Road East.
Taking into account its scale and orientation, and that the building nestles amongst the trees which
provide a degree of screening, this existing ancillary building does not appear overly intrusive in the
context of the site or that of the wider area. This proposal however would result in the new garage
sitting within a ‘clearing’ caused by the removal of mature trees to the north and the existing shed
to the south. As such, not only would the footprint and height of the garage appear excessive, it
would be sited in a much more open context than the existing outbuilding and thus have a
significantly greater visual impact.

The considerable scale and resulting visual impact of the proposed garage is such that it fails to
reflect any existing pattern of development. It is stated in the proposed plans that the
aforementioned shed is due to be demolished, however with no means by which the planning

Page 46



Application Reference: 200544/DPP Page 5 of 6

authority can require it be removed, it is also legitimate to consider the cumulative impact of
development along this public elevation, which again, given the scale of proposed development,
would be significant.

Taking all of the above into account it is considered that the proposed development is not suitably
compliant with the Council’'s Supplementary Guidance on Householder Development and fails to
address the requirements of both Policy H1 (Residential Areas) and Policy D1 (Quality Placemaking
by Design) of the ALDP, which seeks to support development which responds to the site context
and which is designed with due consideration to siting, scale, massing; which reinforces established
patterns of development: and which reflects local style and urban form.

Impact of Development on Trees

The site is covered by Tree Preservation Order 225 and the application is supported by a Tree
Survey Drawing, Report and Schedule. The proposal would result in the loss of 13 mature spruce
trees, 10 of which lie within the footprint and to the north of where the proposed garage would be
located, with 6 of these rising to a height of 20-21 metres and the remaining 4 measuring between
12 and 19 metres in height. The remaining 3 which would be lost lie to the south and adjacent to
the old driveway which is being resurfaced, and range in height from 5 to 22 metres. The 13 trees
in total are all identified within the Tree Survey as having limited long-term potential and requiring
remedial works to ensure their safety. The Survey highlights the trees have a life expectancy of less
than 10 years and recommends their removal within 12 months, therefore by March 2021, outlining
that such removal will create significant opportunity for replacement planting and allow for the
establishment of a more diverse range of trees of long-term potential. The Survey advises that a
mixture of broadleaf and coniferous are used to maximise biodiversity of tree cover, with indicative
tree planting locations included within the Tree Survey Drawing.

Taking the above into account, it should be noted in the first instance that when considering the
potential loss of protected trees, the default position is for them to be retained unless there is
sufficient arboricultural reason for their removal, in which case replanting should, where at all
possible, take place in the same position. If it is accepted that the 13 mature trees should be
removed due to their limited life expectancy and to address safety concerns, then the priority should
be for replanting to be carried out within the area from where these trees would be lost. The Tree
Survey Drawing submitted in support of the application proposes the replanting of 13 trees within
the site, however it should be noted that a number of indicative locations identified for the
replacement planting would conflict with the siting of the proposed garage. Beyond this, and
contrary to what is indicated on the aforementioned Tree Survey Drawing, the replanting shown on
the Proposed Site and Tree Management Plan would not be focussed in the area from where the
trees are being removed and where they currently form part of a continuous tree line, rather the
focus of replanting is identified within areas of the site which would allow for the erection of the
proposed garage building. With this in mind the proposal would result in a significant gap in what
is currently an almost continuous tree cover along the eastern boundary of the site, and the tree
replanting which is proposed would take decades to deliver the same landscape impact as provided
by the trees to be felled.

So whilst the loss of the 13 trees may well be supported in terms of a need to address their limited
long-term potential and resulting safety concerns, their replacement as proposed does not suitably
address the expectations of Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) which states that there is a
presumption against all activities and development that will result in the loss of, or damage to, trees
and woodlands that contribute to landscape character and local amenity. On the basis that the
scale and resulting impact of the proposed development is not deemed acceptable, then any
replacement planting should clearly be carried out with a view to maintaining the existing landscape
character and local amenity, and this would therefore require replanting to be carried out where the
10 trees are to be lost, thus ensuring the continuous line of trees and general character of the site,
garden area and streetscape is not adversely affected in the long term.

Page 47



Application Reference: 200544/DPP Page 6 of 6

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

In relation to this particular application, the policies in the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development
Plan 2020 (ALDP) substantively reiterate those in the adopted Local Development Plan and the
proposal is acceptable in terms of both Plans for the reasons previously given.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The proposed garage development is deemed to be of an inappropriate scale and massing which
does not reflect the typical proportions of an ancillary building. It would appear overly dominant from
outwith the site, fails to respect the context of the surrounding area, nor any established pattern of
development, and would have a negative visual impact on its established character. Furthermore,
the proposal if approved would result in the loss of 13 protected mature trees which form part of a
continuous line of trees along the eastern boundary of the site (TPO 225), and whilst their removal
may be necessary due to their limited long-term potential, appropriate replanting should in the first
instance seek to ensure the existing landscape character and amenity which they contribute towards
is suitably maintained and protected in the long term, rather than enabling development. The
proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policies D1 (Quality
Placemaking by Design), H1 (Residential Areas) and NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the Aberdeen
City Local Development Plan, and does not address the expectations of the Council’s
Supplementary Guidance on Householder Development. There are no material planning
considerations which would warrant approval of planning permission is this instance.

Page 48



Agenda Iltem 2.3

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP)

e Policy H1 — Residential Areas
e Policy D1 - Quality Placemaking by Design
e Policy NE5 — Trees and Woodlands

Supplementary Guidance

Householder Development Guide

https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2.1.PolicySG.HouseHoldDesignGuide.p
df

Other Material Considerations

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2020) (SDP)

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-
plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678

Page 49


https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2.1.PolicySG.HouseHoldDesignGuide.pdf
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2.1.PolicySG.HouseHoldDesignGuide.pdf
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Agenda ltem 2.4

‘ .l‘ .I - - s ." - i

ABERDEEN

" I & .
| | l | |
‘I-'l.ﬁl "!l-

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100340301-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting

on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) Applicant Agent

Agent Detalls

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation: G Design
Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
First Name: * Craig Building Name: >t Brendans
Last Name: * Mackay Building Number: 69
Telephone Number: * 01343540020 ﬁ?éi?ﬁf South Guildry Street
Extension Number: Address 2:
Mobile Number: Town/City: * Elgin
Fax Number: Country: * United Kingdom
Postcode: * V30 1QN

Email Address: * office@cmdesign.biz

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

ndividual

Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 1 of 5

Page 51



Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Title: Building Name: Fairhil
First Name: * N Building Number:

Last Name: ™ Gilehrist f‘sdt‘:;‘;f)“ 275 North Deeside Road
Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: * Aberdeen
Extension Number: Country: * Scotland
Mobile Number: Postcode: * ABT3 OHA
Fax Number:

Email Address: * -

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: FAIRHILL

Address 2: 275 NORTH DEESIDE ROAD

Address 3. MILLTIMBER

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement: ABERDEEN

Post Code: MILLTIMBER

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 801358 Easting 385734

Page 52

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application.

D Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

D No decision reached within the prescribed period (iwo months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority's decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the 'Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matiter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Please refer to all appeal documents attached.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the D Yes No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 3 of 5

Page 53




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Statement of Appeal 200021.GILCHRIST.07BW B 200021.GILCHRIST.08BW 200021.GILCHRIST.C9BW A Tree Survey Report
Tree Survey Drawing Handling Report Decision Notice

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 200544/DPP
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 08/05/2020

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 17/11/2020

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

Yes D No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * Yes D No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * Yes D No

Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name Yes D No D N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Page 4 of 5

Page 54




Declare — Notice of Review

|/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Mr Craig Mackay

Declaration Date: 16/12/2020

Page 55

Page 5 of 5




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



design i

architectural consultants

LOCAL REVIEW BOARD

STATEMENT OF APPEAL

Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage at Fairhill, 275
North Deeside Road, Milltimber

Dec 2020
St. Brendans 4 Bridge Street
South Guildry Street Nairn
Elgin Highland
Moray IV12 4EJ
IV30 1QN

t. 01343 540020 t. 01667 300230
w. cmdesign.biz w. cmdesign.biz

planningconsultancy ¢ architecturaldesign ¢ projectmanagement

Page 57



St. Brendans

- South Guildry Street
design ==
—

architectural consultants

planningconsultancy ¢ architecturaldesign ¢ projectmanagement

Our Reference:

Local Authority:

Planning Application Ref:
Application Proposal:
Site Address:

Appellants:

Date Application Validated:

Council Decision Notice Date:

Reason for Refusal:

Moray
IV30 1QN
t. 01343 540020 f. 01343 556470
e. office@cmdesign.biz

200021.GILCHRIST

Aberdeen City Council

200544.DPP

Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage
Fairhill, 275 North Deeside, Milltimber, AB13 OHA
Mr & Mrs N Gilchrist

13 May 2020

17 November 2020

“The proposed garage development is deemed to be of an
inappropriate scale and massing which does not reflect the typical
proportions of an ancillary building.

It would appear overly dominant from outwith the site, fails to respect
the context of the surrounding area, nor any established pattern of
development and would have a negative visual impact on its
established character. Furthermore, the proposal if approved would
result in the loss of 13 protected mature trees which form part of a
continuous line of trees along the eastern boundary of the site (TP
225) and whilst their removal may be necessary due to their limited
long term potential , appropriate replanting should in the first
instance seek to ensure the existing landscaping character and
amenity which they contribute towards is suitably maintained and
protected in the long terms rather than enabling development.

The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to the
requirements of Policies D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design), H1
(Residential Areas) and NES (Trees and Woodlands) of the

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 58



Aberdeen City Local Development Plan and does not address the
expectations of the Council’s Supplementary Guidance on
Householder Developments. There are no material planning
considerations which would warrant approval of planning permission

in this instance.”

Application Drawings & DOCO001 - CMD Drawing — 200021.GILCHRIST.07BW (B)
Supporting Documents: DOC002 - CMD Drawing — 200021.GILCHRIST.08BW
DOCO003 - CMD Drawing — 200021.GILCHRIST.09BW (A)
DOC 004 — Struan Dagliesh — Tree Survey Report
DOCO005 — Struan Dagliesh — Tree Survey Drawing
DOCO006 — Handling Report
DOCO007 — Decision Notice

Contents: Introduction — Page 3
Background — Page 4
Statement of Case — Page 6

Reasons for Refusal — Page 9

a ko N =

Conclusion — Page 11

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275
NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 59




1. Introduction

1.1.

The following Statement of Case, submitted by CM Design, Town Planning & Architectural
Consultants, has been prepared to support a Local Review Board submission relating to a;

Replacement of existing dilapidated outbuilding with a new 1.5 storey detached domestic

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

1.9.

garage with first floor facilities.

The principal of replacing the existing outbuildings on site with a new detached garage in
the proposed location was generally approved by the Planning case officer and, despite
the stated reasons for refusal, it is understood that only the height of the proposed building
is at issue, brought about by the required depth of the garage.

An extract of some of the pre-decision communications with the Planning case officer
does suggest that the development would be acceptable in principle if the prescribed
amendments were accepted and implemented.

On 3 August the Planning Case officer commented as follows - “/f it can be clearly
established that there is no alternative location on the site for the proposed
development, then we would nevertheless want to re-iterate that the scale and design
of the proposed garage is currently unacceptable and we would be seeking a reduction
to the depth (width) of the garage by a minimum of 1.3 metres, and for the ridge height
and roof pitch to be reduced accordingly, with the resulting pitch not to exceed 40
degrees, thus achieving a proposal which better reflects the proportions of a domestic
garage (ancillary building)”

The Decision Notice is therefore slightly misleading and should be read in conjunction with
the case officer's Handling report Evaluation summary.

The house and site at Fairhill, is substantial, the tree cover is exceptional with over 70
trees, and the appellant’s family faithfully steward the site passionately and sacrificially with
constant need for tree care and maintenance.

The appellant requires the facilities offered in these proposals to accommodate a growing
number of cars as the children are now also driving, garden machinery and the additional
amenity space in the attic to serve a growing family.

All trees on site are covered by TPO No 225 and any proposed tree removal in this
application has been already approved in principal and specified by a qualified 3™ part
specialist.

Significant material considerations exist in the context of this application and appeal and
can be summarised as follows;

. The Planning Case Officer has already approved the principle of this
development and only objects to the height of the building (viz a viz the width)

. The difference in the height being asked for and the revised height being offered
equates to around 300mm

. The Arboriculture Consultant approved the removal of trees, on the grounds of
safety and decay, in the location where the new garage is to be located and required
that this be done within 12 months of the report

. Any other suitable location for the proposed building was proven to have a significant
impact on healthy tree roots elsewhere on the site.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 60



1.10. This Statement of case will not only address the reasons for refusal identified in the
rejection notice but will also seek to demonstrate why these particular reasons for refusal
could be described as perhaps misleading in nature given the extensive preliminary
discussions and revisions that were exchanged in the determination process.

1.11. No objection to this application was lodged by householders or third parties.

2. Background

2.1. Despite the extensive size of the site at Fairhill
(4143m2), the house itself is only a 5 bedroom
house equating to a footprint of circa 250m2.

2.2. The house itself does host an integral single garage
but this would be considered dated in modern
standards and is given over to the usual storage
demands of a large family home.

Proposed Garage

2.3. There is also an aging dilapidated masonry built
outbuilding located on the roughly same area as the
proposals in this case. This outbuilding is also
situated on the boundary wall and is currently
deemed to be beyond repair and not fit for use as it
is too short for modern cars.

2.4. The proposed garage footprint equates to a mere 58mz2 and is comparatively insignificant to
the surrounding context on site.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275
NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 61



2.5. The proposed garage has been located further north than the current outbuilding to allow
access to the already tarmacked driveway and hardstanding and without the need to impact
upon tree roots in the building of the proposals or the implementation of drainage needs.

2.6. The area on which the new building is to be located was already to be cleared of trees that
were deemed to have a limited life expectancy and posing a risk the house and public road.
A formal 3" party specialist report issued in March 2020 recommended these trees be
removed within 12months and this makes this recommendation and is attached to this
Appeal submission.

2.7. The proposed garage and first floor attic are required for the following purposes

o Landscaping tools and plant including an appropriate level of access for ride on lawn
machinery

o Parking of appellants family vehicles, including those of grown up children residing at
home

. Storage of family recreational items
Annexe recreational space (first floor) for grown up children and home working office
space for the appellant.

2.8. These storage demands include the expected tools and plant required to care for the
significant grounds and trees as well as family cars. There is currently no appropriate place to
adequately store the large plant machinery required to tend the grounds of the house.

2.9. The upper storey facilities are much needed by a large family for all manner of reasons and
when designing the space required on the ground floor it was found that a simple attic truss
would create an efficient and moderate upper floor space.

2.10. ltis important to note that any accommodation in an attic space can only be accessed
where a minimum of 2m headroom can achieved across at least 1m of its floor space. The
height of a ridge and width of a building is absolutely critical to achieving this and the depth
of the garage is equally critical in achieving this . (see extract below)

2.11. This extract demonstrates why the width of the Roolline of original opplicaion
garage needs to be kept as originally
intended. It can be clearly seen how the stair
needs to land in the centre of the building and
how much ceiling width is available when
reducing the ridge height. This extract shows
the absolute minimum that the ridge can be
reduced to before the attic storey becomes
inaccessible.

2.12. The Statement of case will explain more fully,
the exchanges between the appellant and the
case officer in which it was made very clear
that consent would be granted if the height
of the proposed building could be reduced to the measure prescribed.

2.13. The Statement of case will also show that many design amends were submitted by the
appellant to secure the approval of the proposals including a good measure of reduced ridge
height, the removal of external stair access and several other changes to encourage
approval.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275
NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 62



2.14.

2.15.

2.16.

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

When it was clear that the punitive reduction in ridge height being required by the Local
Authority, would ruin any likelihood of a useable attic storey, the appellant had no choice but
to indicate that a formal Appeal would be necessary to examine the fairness of what was
being requested.

The impasse that brought about this refusal equates to a mere 300mm of ridge height which
might not sound critical but the loss of such a measure would significantly compromise the
proposals, the attic space afforded and the efficiency of design.

The Statement of case will demonstrate how critical the disputed 300mm of ridge height is to
the success and longevity of the design and why there would be no visible impact of this
extra 300mm when compared to the ridge height that is being suggested by the Planning
case Officer.

Statement of Case

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) requires applications to be determined in accordance with the Development Plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

As stated earlier in this Statement there are significant material considerations to be
aware of in this case and are repeated here for the sake of clarity.

. The Planning Case Officer has already approved the principle of this
development and only objects to the height of the building (viz a viz the width)

. The difference in the height being asked for and the revised height being offered
equates to around 300mm

. The Arboriculture Consultant approved the removal of trees, on the grounds of
safety and decay, in the location where the new garage is to be located and required
that this be done within 12 months of the report

. Any other suitable location for the proposed building was proven to have a significant
impact on healthy tree roots elsewhere on the site.

Usually in the midst of an Appeal case like this, it would normally be important to directly
address the issues of refusal as outlined in the Decision Notice. To be clear, these referred
to 1) scale and design and 2) the removal of trees.

This Statement of Case will indeed address these two issues directly,

For the avoidance of all doubt, the possibility of a garage in this location and the removal of
trees is approved in principal (see DOC007 — Case Officer Handling Report). Itis only
the ridge height that is at issue here.

Prior to receiving the Decision Notice declaring the refusal of this application, the appellant
engaged in positive negotiations with the Planning case Officer to modify the initially lodged
design scheme in order to meet with the approval of the Local Authority. The extract below
shows the original elevations for the initial application.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 63



3.7.

3.8.

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

m
il

WEST ELEVATION 1:50 T EASTELEVATION 1:50 SOUTH ELEVATION 1:50 [ NORTH ELEVATION 1:50

This initial application involved a gable width of 7.6m, a ridge height of 6.7m and also an
external stair to access the attic storey.

The Planning Case officer raised initial issues with the design and scale of the building and
requested that 1) gable width be reduced by 1.3m, 2) that the roof pitch be reduced to
40degrees and 3) that the external stair be omitted.

The planning case officer also asked for further justification for the chosen location of the
garage and, following an exchange of information including the findings of the Arboricultural
report, the case officer stated — “We can confirm that we’re satisfied that the proposed
location for the garage has been determined based on minimising the impact on
underground services and drainage, and limiting the impact on existing root protection
areas, and on that basis we can proceed with the location as currently proposed (ie
adjacent to the eastern boundary of the site)

Contrary to the inferences of the Decision Notice that the development was unacceptable in
a wholesale fashion, later directions given by the case officer inferred that approval of the
development was possible subject to the prescribed amendments on width, height and
roof pitch being accepted by the appellant.

In an email exchange on 3™ August 2020, the case officer stated — “If it can be clearly
established that there is no alternative location on the site for the proposed
development, then we would nevertheless want to re-iterate that the scale and design
of the proposed garage is currently unacceptable and we would be seeking a reduction
to the depth (width) of the garage by a minimum of 1.3 metres, and for the ridge height
and roof pitch to be reduced accordingly, with the resulting pitch not to exceed 40
degrees, thus achieving a proposal which better reflects the proportions of a domestic
garage (ancillary building)”

These statements clearly indicated that 1) the location of the proposals was found to be
acceptable and 2) that the principal of the building was acceptable, subject to the
prescribed amendments.

The following extract makes clear the impact of these suggested changes on the design
and feasibility of the proposals.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 64




3.14.

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

3.21.

3.22.

The profile shown in red in the adjacent
extract is the size of development as
suggested by the Case Officer (with a
1.3m reduction in width) and one can see
immediately that the attic storey would be
rendered un-useable by these changes.

The appellant was encouraged that the
Case Officer’s design option (shaded red)
would be supported but given the scale of
the host property and surrounding
buildings, the appellant felt that the
reduction in ridge height being prescribed
was punitive and not commensurate with
what could be gained by retaining the attic storey.

RS

House space, floor space and family space is extremely precious in this day and age and
such a punitive reduction in ridge height that loses any chance of a useable attic space,
could be considered wasteful.

The appellant submitted a revised alternative proposal to council which 1) reduced the
ridge height and scale of the proposals and 2) removed the external stair in favour of an
internal stair arrangement — see extract below.

The red broken line indicates the original
ridge height in relation to a revised proposal
which provides for a reduction in ridge
height with the absolute minimum of
ceiling space to allow a compliant attic
space.

Roofline of original application

The relocation of the stair internally,
impacted upon the ground floor storage and
parking area available and hence no
reduction in gable width was possible in this
alternative design

This design compromise was not accepted
by the Planning case Officer and the
appellant was advised that unless the initial demanded changes were implemented, the
application would be refused.

The appellant contends that the revised design offers a significant reduction in ridge height
without losing potential use of the attic storey. The difference in what the case officer
wanted and what was being provided equated to a mere 300mm.

The appellant believes that a suitable compromise was found, that secured a reduction in
scale without losing valuable attic space.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 65



3.23. The two extracts below show (on the left) the scale of development demanded by council
(shown red) and on the right, the revised proposal on which one can see the head room
required for an attic to be useable.

Roofline of original application

Existing wal

F]
i
g
i
§

i
|
1

] ':I

3.24. The difference between the two options is a mere 300mm but the impact on the effiencies
of space offered from the same purchase of materials is critical and not to be
underestimated.

4. Reasons for Refusal

4.1. Despite the general approval in principal demonstrated in this Statement of case, the
current application has been “officially” refused on the grounds of two separate issues.

4.2. The appellant requests that this appeal be considered upon the basis of the material
matters raised but for the sake of protocol, responds directly to the matters of refusal as
follows.

4.3. REASON FOR REFUSAL NO 1 - “The proposed garage development is deemed to be of an

inappropriate scale and massing which does not reflect the typical proportions of an ancillary
building. It would appear overly dominant from outwith the site, fails to respect the context of
the surrounding area, nor any established pattern of development and would have a negative
visual impact on its established character”

4.31. When reading this reason for refusal
it is important to be mindful of the
fact that the proposals are still
supported for approval by the Case Officer under this policy IF the appellant
was to agree to reduce the ridge height to the height prescribed.

4.3.2. It is also important to register that the appellant has offered a 700mm reduction
in ridge height that falls short of what is required by a mere 300mm which is
critical to the success of the design and use of the attic space.

4.3.3. The Handling Report describes the criteria of the Policy D1 and Special
Guidance for “detached buildings within dwelling’s curtilages” which does
specifically accept the possibility of accommodating additional storeys
within the attic space.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275
NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 66



4.3.4.

4.3.5.

4.3.6.

4.3.7.

4.3.8.

4.3.9.

4.3.10.

4.3.11.

4.3.12.

The SG does also state that any development should be subordinate to the host
property and the appellant would contend that the application proposals meet
this requirement fully.

The SG also requires that development should retain the appearance of being
single storey and that any access should be achieved internally. Given that the
ridge height being prescribed by the case officer would be deemed to have the
appearance of single storey, it remains for the Board members to decide
whether the extra 300mm at issue would be equally acceptable.

What is clear from the SG though is that an attic storey is acceptable.

The comment stating that the proposals do not reflect the “typical proportions an
ancillary building” could be considered to be ill-directed. It would be a stretch to
suggest that 58m2 of new build development on a site this size would not be
considered ancillary.

Ancillary buildings take on all manner of shape, size and use in modern family
homes and especially large properties. Pool houses, “granny flats”, garden
offices, serviced tourist accommodation and orangeries are all common
developments in large family properties and this development is no different and
can easily be justified by the context found around it.

In terms of the inferred dominance to the south view, it should be noted that the
existing outbuilding presents a gable to Station Road, whereas this proposal
presents the sloping flank of its rear roof. The existing boundary wall and
significant tree canopy to the north and south of the proposals provide additional
context and screening at any time of year.

There is indeed a
settlement pattern of
garden development like
this all over Milltimber and
especially within large
garden grounds where
evidence of sub-division
for new housing can be
easily found.

These proposals would
be considered ancillary
compared with
neighbouring :

developments and in keeping with the significant scale of the host property and
those round it.

In conclusion, it can be clearly seen from the negotiations and comments made
by the planning case officer, that the principal of a garage building in the
location, if no other location was suitable, was approved.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 67




4.4,

5.1.

REASON FOR REFUSAL No 2 - “Furthermore, the proposal if approved would result in the
loss of 13 protected mature trees which form part of a continuous line of trees along the
eastern boundary of the site (TP 225) and whilst their removal may be necessary due to their
limited long term potential , appropriate replanting should in the first instance seek to ensure
the existing landscaping character and amenity which they contribute towards is suitably
maintained and protected in the long terms rather than enabling development.

4.4.1. As can be seen from the correspondence and dialogue between the appellant
and the Case Officer, the matter of tree removal was also approved in principal
and it is unclear why this reason for refusal has been included here.

4.4.2. Prior to the application being submitted, the Aboricultural Consultant, Struan
Dagliesh was engaged by the appellant to undertake a comprehensive review of
all trees on the site and was able to report “....the most badly affected trees
appear to occur along the eastem boundary lining the old driveway where
wood decay fungus was noted and damage to the wall has occurred. It is
recommended thirteen (13) spruce trees, 562, 563, 566 and 570 to 579 are
removed within 12 months™

4.4.3. The manner of narrative describing this particular reason for refusal was more
akin to a draft statement of suspensive condition than a formal reason for refusal
as it pays heed to the fact that “removal may be necessary” but then goes on
to suggest that “replanting would appropriate”

4.4.4. The appellant will indeed be implementing a scheme of replanting over the years
ahead under the direction of Struan Dagliesh or as directed by any suspensive
condition that the Board might deem appropriate.

4.45. It should be made so vary clear that the removal of trees on this site is not
enabling development as the Aboricultural Specialist has already
recommended their removal on the basis of safety of the householder and the
public.

5. Conclusion

This Statement of case has established the following:

That the Planning Case Officer was willing to accept a garage proposal like this in
principal but with a reduced ridge height and other amends —

Quote — ““We can confirm that we're satisfied that the proposed location for the
garage has been determined based on minimising the impact on underground services
and drainage, and limiting the impact on existing root protection areas, and on that
basis we can proceed with the location as currently proposed (ie adjacent to the
eastern boundary of the site)”

And later commenting “.we would be seeking a reduction to the depth
(width) of the garage by a minimum of 1.3 metres, and for the ridge
height and roof pitch to be reduced accordingly, with the resulting
pitch not to exceed 40 degrees, thus achieving a proposal which

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 68



5.2.

5.3.

54.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

better reflects the proportions of a domestic garage (ancillary
building)”

That the appellant presented an alterative design scheme that addressed all
requested amends and did reduce the ridge height but falling short of the measure
requested by a mere 300mm

That the disputed 300mm is critical to allowing the attic space of the proposed
garage to be used and accessed for amenity space.

Council required a reduction in ridge height of circa 1m to secure support of the application.

The appellant provided alternative proposals that offered circa 700mm reduction but without
losing the potential for the attic storey.

The revised proposals omitted the external stair arrangement as requested.

The officially recorded Reasons for Refusal have been addressed and the appellant
contends that both reasons do not reflect the pre-decision communications or evidence in
this case.

The Appellant contends that everything that can be done, has been done to meet the needs
of the Local Authority to limit impact to the degree prescribed but without losing the use of the
attic space.

The Appellant has proven that the matter of tree removal is already required and approved in
principal by the case officer and should perhaps not have been included as a reason for
refusal in this manner.

The Appellant desperately needs a sufficient building to store vehicles and plant machinery
and contends that Policy D1 does allow for attic accommodation and further contends that
the design has already been amended as much as possible without losing any hope of a
useable attic space.

The appellant respectfully requests that detail of this case be fully considered and the
Appeal to approve this application be upheld.

LOCAL REVIEW PLANNING APPEAL STATEMENT OF CASE — ERECT OF 1.5 STOREY DOMESTIC GARAGE AT FAIRHILL, 275

NORTH DEESIDE ROAD, MILLTIMBER

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



ﬁz uuuuuuuuu Sy

LOCAL REVIEW BODY

NG

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

200557/DPP- Review against refusal of planning permission for:

Formation of pitched roof to an existing garage to from store and
single storey workshop extension to rear

2 Gladstone Place

T°€ Wa)| epusby






Location Plan: GIS




Location — Aerial Photo

LTS BT Igrag LT 0 PRy |
figod b gt i g ARG

o 2]




S
(T
(<)
pud
()
o0
(C
-
(T
O

Photo




Photo: NE corner of site

View to N showing rear of 2 Queens Land South




NE corner of site

Photo




Photo: Garage front




Photo: Garage front




Photo: NW corner




Rear lane

Photo

Page 81



Existing and Proposed Site Plan

28 abed

-gf;‘.t‘!‘;".t‘h"ﬂn‘l
VAVAVAVAVAVANAVAVAN,
WAVATA TANAVAY,

WAYAYAYAVAVLAVAVAYAY.
AVAVAVAYAVAVAVAVLY o

RYAVAYAVAYAY -
""""

WAVAVAVAVAYAVAVAVLY,
ATAYAVAYAYAVAVAVAYAY
"AVATATEVATAVAVAYAYA
TAYAVAVAVAVAVAVAVAVA
T#T‘T‘Y“l"‘i?‘"‘!lil

k! AV
AVAYAVAYAVAVAVAVAVAN.
TAVAVAYAVAVAYAVAVAYL.
TAVAYAYAVAVAVAYAVAYL
VAVAYAYAYAYAVAYAYAYL
WAYAVAVAVAVAVAVAV o \

\"A'.l"l'j.'l?j"j'j"j‘;
AYATAYAYATATAYATAYAY,

WATAYL) (VAVAYAY.
ATAY, EAT TS
FAYAVAYAVAYAVAVAVAN
TAVANAY VA AN AT A AT
TAVAVAVAVAVAVAVAVAN.
VaAYAVAYAVAVLYLVAYAY)
WAVAVAVAYAVAVAVAY o




Elevations: NW (to Queen’s Lane)

Eaves Front
3130
h 4

Eaves Rear
L T T T T T T T T T T T

EXISTING B e

PVC
downpipe l

GF Level
0
2 [ - A 4
T
w | |
(@)
@
% | | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L] | L]
! |
Slate roof
=T = R e ‘ e Eaves House
0 0 e e e 3415
j#l::\\\:::\'\::'\'::I'III"“‘ ::: “\\I‘IIII
I [T 1 [T T 1 2N0550XH#EEE#EEi
o e | P Now FF
Y IW:'::I\1::\\':'II:':IIW"‘I‘\W: ':I:\\ : HH:HI::
I e |
 jrwren match thi MRS = ————, Extension Eaves
PROPOSED [ Ser 10 MACh SRling e e PG U e e 71 2500
I A
-
; Existing roller )
1RS shutter doo GF Level
: h
I SRR I D e
|



Elevations: NE (to garden)

Eaves Front
3130

EXISTING Eaves Rear

2845
h 4

GF Level
0
v

A

LT T T T T T T TTT
I ) D

g abed

New FF
2800
h 4

Slate roof

e

Extension Eaves

PROPOSED 2500

. Il

GF Level
0
v

PVC
dowrppe |

Cedral

composite

linings

UPVc windows

& doors

block basecourse




Elevations: SW (to side)

Eaves Front \

3130

Eaves Rear
2845

EXISTING v

GF Level ‘
h 4 A :

Gg abed

Eaves House

3415 2No 550 x
980mm veluxs

— Slate roof
New FF @@

2800 T T T PVC gutter
A o (v RAEF s Kt i ol
PROPOSED P R ' R A Cedral composite linings

gl e T l‘ UPVc windows

GF Level G J]

Renderto
-~ match existing * -




3D Images

EXISTING

9g abed

PROPOSED




Ground Floor Plan

il i Wit bings 15 maseh Sstangion

Wincow movd, Bickwark 1aken
down and paiia shding doors insialed

PROPOSED
N

—

Garden

EXISTING

Queens Lane South

A

Il
Page 87



First Floor Plan

PROPOSED

n
ap

_:_:Iﬂﬂrn'nmh ,_: m

T 1 gix]

ml H W -
T HTHH
oy pligigEy Nyl
(Q milpglglala
® H S 1 I I 1 I
00]
m H

I
T Aftic / Storage

4614

I A A




Sections

Eaves Rear
2845
h 4

EXISTING

GF Level
0
A4

Eaves Front
3130
A 4

T T T T T T T T T T T 71
T T T T T T T T T TT
'U [ T T T T T T T T TTT
I T T T T T T T T 1T
QJ IIIlllllllllllllllllll
Q == e
RmB IIIII]l]l]llll
OPOSED New room in the roof trusses = LI T T 1T [T
(o] —— LT TTTT
K | I Eaves House i
Faves HoaL«ﬁ: - | | | 2415 I
A h 4 =
I
New FF
xtension Eaves BN 2800 Extension Eaves 3
2500 A & 2500 b
k4 ¥ |l H— — ——
2 °
x &
Hi - Stairs 4
=1 =, il 2
ing - -
GF Level g ! ! GF Level "; e
= e 4
vD § Existing concrete floor retained h L [ . .
) — T _|:'|- i e -|“'|’|' e -| I : = 4 av 2 ) _\ |
Foundation N Foundation
-750 -750
v w I S
2 - - — — — — I S




Reasons for Decision

Stated in full in decision notice. Key points:

Excessive and unsympathetic scale and massing in relation to surrounding context
Would adversely affect the pattern of back lane development on the south side of Queen’s Lane South
and the historic character and appearance of the surrounding Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation

Area

Proposed materials (Cedral composite cladding and uPVC) are not traditional or sympathetic materials
and would not be appropriate in the curtilage of a historic building in a conservation area,

Conflict with principles of SPP; Historic Environment Policy for Scotland; Policies H1 - Residential Areas,
D1 - Quality Placemaking by Design and D4 - Historic Environment of the Aberdeen Local Development
Plan; the Council's Householder Development Guide SG;

Also highlights conflict with corresponding policies in Proposed ALDP

Concludes that there are not material planning considerations which would warrant approval.



Applicant’s Case

Set out in supporting statements. Key points include:

. 16 abed

Contends that the proposal is modest, sympathetic to context, and consistent with the character of
the Conservation Area (CA)

Notes that garages of a larger scale have been approved elsewhere within the CA
Delineation between feus is maintained and the proposal would ‘read’ as a domestic garage

Proposal complies with ‘Householder Development Guide’ SG in terms of outbuildings (subordinate
scale, no dormer windows, internal access, appropriate scale). Highlights that garage would not be
highly visible and the roof form is an improvement on the existing flat-roofed form, which does not
result in conflict with the CA Character Appraisal.

Highlights use of non-traditional materials in recent planning approvals, including Cedral (fibre
cement) cladding elsewhere in the rear lane. Notes also that these materials are to garden side only.

States that height is necessary to accommodate existing garage door and mechanism, and highlights
suggested compromises which were rejected by officers, but which the applicant would accept if
members were minded to approve on that basis

Highlights that neighbours have welcomed the proposals and there was no objection to the
application

Notes that reasons for refusal refer only to the roof/height and not to the formation of the workshop
extension on the garden side, which is understood to be acceptable to planning service



e |s this overdevelopment?

 Would it have an ‘unacceptable impact on the character and
amenity’ of the area?

-
Q
«Q
@
N  Would it result in the loss of open space?
* Does it comply with Supplementary Guidance?
(e.g. Householder Development Guide; and Transport and Accessibility SG)
ﬁzr
[ I \g
L%
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



All dev’t must “ensure high standards of design and have a strong and
distinctive sense of place which is a result of context appraisal,
detailed planning, quality architecture, craftsmanship and materials”.

g Proposals will be assessed against the following six essential qualities:
% - Distinctive
- Welcoming
- Safe and pleasant
- Easy to move around
- Adaptable
- Resource-efficient
T
Lo
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



* ACC will ‘protect, preserve and enhance’ the
historic environment, in line with national and
local policy and guidance

High quality design that respects the character,
appearance and setting of the historic
environment, and protects the special
architectural and historic interest of its LBs and
CAs will be supported

6 abed
[ ]

=2

5

—n7 ]
T

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL




* Proposed development should be architecturally compatible with
original house and surrounding area (design, scale etc)

e Should not ‘dominate or overwhelm’ original house. Should remain
visually subservient.

 Development should not result in a situation where the amenity of
neighbouring properties would be adversely affected (e.g. privacy,
daylight, general amenity)

o
o)
Q
D
O
(6]

* Approvals pre-dating this guidance do not represent a ‘precedent’

e * No more than 50% of the front or rear curtilage shall be covered by

-
%’a&,jg‘é: development.

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



Qutbuildings

In many cases ancillary buildings may be classed as permitted
development. Where planning permission is required, the following
rules will apply:

* Qutbuildings must always be subordinate in scale to the
dwellinghouse and two storey outbuildings will generally not be
permitted;

* Where a second storey is to be accommodated within a pitched
roofspace, outbuildings should retain the impression of being single
storey in height and dormers will not be permitted as a means of
gaining additional headroom;

o
o)
Q
D
(o]
(o))

* Access to an upper floor should be situated internally;

* Qutbuildings should not have a negative impact on the character of
the surrounding area;

* Where highly visible and especially in conservation areas, detached
garages should be of a scale and design that respects the prevalent
context of the surrounding area;

* Proposals will be assessed on their impact on the amenity of the

g o area (e.g. loss of daylight/privacy) in the same way as extensions;

3 Tilﬁ’ i
E\I&i’\@ \SS\ Outbuildings will not usually be acceptable in front gardens because
ABERDEEN of the damaging impact development forward of a front building line
CITY COUNCIL can have on the visual character of an area.



/6 abed

=2

5

—n7 ]
T

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Notes that siting of garages can alter the appearance of rear
lanes, and general preference is for no set-back, as garages
can help maintain delineation of lanes

Setback of 1m can be necessary for safety reasons in some
instances

It will not be acceptable for garage doors to encroach onto
lane when opened

Minimum external dimensions for new single garage are 6m
X 3.0m, with internal size of at least 5.7m x 2.7m



* Proposals in CAs should preserve or enhance the
character and appearance of the CA. Proposals that
do not harm the character or appearance should be

treated as preserving it.

o
o)

Q
D
(o]
(00]

OOOOOOOOO

=

r
58S

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



‘— .

0
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

l l._j f T3 gt 2 J 1 =3
RN

Conservation Area Character Appraisals and Management Plan

July 2013

Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4 - Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen
AB10 1AB
www.aberdeencity.gov.uk




00T abed

Site lies within sub-area C: ‘North and south of Queen’s Road, but east of Rubislaw Den’;

The southern portion of Character area C is noted as a predominantly residential area, comprising
mostly semi-detached and terraced properties, set back from wide tree-lined pavements behind
low granite walls.

Notes that back lanes in the area provide rear garage access and also allow for very long views
through the character area.

Back lanes typically comprise high boundary walls built of coursed or rubble stone, topped with
brick or coping stones. There are a number of garage styles and forms but most are modest in scale
and built of stone, granite or brick with low-pitched or mono-pitched roofs. The garages have either
slate or asbestos roof coverings, and are typically neat and small in proportion.

The loss of the original street pattern and boundary walls of back land development due to car
parking and rear extensions is identified as both an existing weakness and a future threat to the
character of the CA.

Threats also include ‘unsympathetic development that does not reflect or relate to character of CA’
and ‘unsympathetic development of large residential garages’



Zoning: Do members consider that the proposed works would adversely affect the
character or amenity of the area, as set out in policy H1? Do the proposed alterations
accord with the relevant SG and its content on domestic garages, also tied to policy H1?

Historic Environment: Do members consider that the proposed works to preserve or
enhance the character and amenity of the Conservation Area, as required by SPP, HESPS
and policy D4 of the ALDP?

§ Design: Is the proposal of sufficient design quality (D1), appropriate to its context?
o)
5 1. Does the proposal comply with the Development Plan when considered as a whole?
H
2. Do other material considerations weigh for or against the proposal? (e.g. SPP, HEPS)
Are they of sufficient weight to overcome any conflict with the Development Plan?
Decision — state clear reasons for decision
e Conditions? (if approved — Planning Adviser can assist)
L%
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Agenda Item 3.2

Strategic Place Planning

ABERDEEN | Report of Handling

CITY COUNCIL

Site Address: 2 Gladstone Place, Harlaw, Aberdeen, AB10 6XA

Application Formation of pitched roof to an existing garage to from store and single storey workshop
Description: extension to rear

Application Ref: 200557/DPP

Application Type: Detailed Planning Permission

Application Date: 12 May 2020

Applicant: Mr M Recht

Ward: Hazlehead/Ashley/Queens Cross

Community Council: | Queen's Cross and Harlaw

Case Officer: Xinyi Li

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description

This application relates to a 2-storey terraced granite dwelling house of traditional build and design
on the northwest of Gladstone Place within the Albyn and Rubislaw Conservation Area. The rear
garden is fully enclosed with approximately 1.4m high boundary walls on each side and by an
existing garage on its rear boundary. To the rear (north) is Queen’s Lane South: a rear lane of a
character typically found in the West End of Aberdeen, which is predominantly used as a rear
access to buildings on Gladstone Place to the south and Queens Road to the north. There are a
number of buildings that front directly onto the lane, including 2 Queen’s Lane South which adjoins
the application site. The majority of the buildings are domestic garages, together with a grouping
of buildings near to the junction with Forest Avenue associated with Albyn School. An existing
double garage, which extends across the full width of the feu, is located to the rear of the garden.
The existing garage has a total height of c. 3.1m, depth of c. 5.8m and width of c. 8.5m. It has a
very shallow pitched roof, incorporates a double width roller shutter door and is finished in
roughcast render

Relevant Planning History
None

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal

Page 103



Application Reference: 200557/DPP Page 2 of 6

Planning permission is sought for the construction of a pitched roof to the existing garage to form
an attic/storage area above and the erection of a single storey workshop extension to rear. The
altered garage would have an overall height of c. 6.1m (to the ridge of the roof) and would see a
rise in the wall height to the eaves of c. 3.5m; an increase of approx. 0.4m on the front elevation
and approx. 0.7m on the rear elevation. The single storey extension constructed to the rear (south
east), would have a wall head height matching that of the proposed altered garage of c.3.5m and
an overall height of c.4.4m to the top of the mono-pitched roof. The extension would project ¢.3.9m
by a width of c.2.3m resulting in an overall footprint of c.9sgm. It would include a door and window
in the rear and windows in the side (south west) elevations. Both the rear of the existing garage
and the extension would be finished in cedral composite cladding, the garage gable would be
rendered to match existing. The roof would be finished in slates. Finally, velux windows would be
introduced in the front and rear roof slopes of the garage, and in the side facing elevation of the
extension.

Supporting Documents
All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=-QA7VZGBZHTLO00

CONSULTATIONS

Queen's Cross and Harlaw Community Council — No response received

REPRESENTATIONS

None

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where,
in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 requires
the planning authority to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of conservation areas.

National Planning Policy and Guidance

Scottish Planning Policy (SPP)
Historic Environment Policy for Scotland (HEPS)

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017) (ALDP)
D1: Quality Placemaking by Design

D4: Historic Environment
H1: Residential Areas

Page 104



Application Reference: 200557/DPP Page 3 of 6

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)

The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (Proposed ALDP) was approved at the Council
meeting of 2 March 2020. The Proposed ALDP constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what
the final content of the next adopted ALDP should be and is now a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications. The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 will continue
to be the primary document against which applications are considered. The exact weight to be
given to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to
specific applications will depend on whether —

+ these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues Report;

and,
» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report; and,
» the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. The following policies of the
Proposed ALDP are relevant to this application:

e D1: Quality Placemaking

e DG6: Historic Environment

e H1: Residential Areas
Supplementary Guidance (SG)
Householder Development Guide

Other Material Considerations

Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan

EVALUATION

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

In relation to this particular application, the policies in the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development
Plan 2020 (ALDP) substantively reiterate those in the adopted Local Development Plan and the
proposal is acceptable in terms of both Plans for the reasons given below.

Principle of Development

The application site is located in a residential area, under Policy H1 (Residential Areas) of the
ALDP, and the proposal relates to householder development. Householder development would
accord with this policy in principle if it does not constitute over development, adversely affect the
character and amenity of the surrounding area, and it complies with the SG, in this case the
Householder Development Guide (HDG). These issues are assessed in the below evaluation.

Design and Scale

To determine the effect of the proposal on the character of the area it is necessary to assess it in
the context of policy D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design). This policy recognises that not all
development will be of a scale that makes a significant placemaking impact but recognises that
good design and detail adds to the attractiveness of the built environment.

In addition, the context of the application is set by its position within the Albyn Place/Rubislaw
Conservation Area, and as such policy D4 (Historic Environment) applies. Policy D4 sets out that
the Council will protect, preserve and enhance the historic environment in line with Scottish

Page 105



Application Reference: 200557/DPP Page 4 of 6

Planning Policy (SPP) and SHEP (now Historic Environment Policy for Scotland - HEPS). SPP
sets out in paragraph 137 that the planning system should promote the care and protection of the
historic environment; and should enable positive change in the historic environment. Change
should be sensitively managed to avoid or minimise adverse impacts on the fabric and setting of
the asset and ensure that its special characteristics are protected, conserved or enhanced.
Furthermore, in paragraph 143 it sets out that proposals for development within conservation
areas should preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area.
Proposals that do not harm the character or appearance of the conservation area should be
treated as preserving its character or appearance. HEPS further emphasises that changes to
specific assets and their context should be managed in a way that protects the historic
environment, and that opportunities for enhancement should be identified where appropriate.

The existing garage is located within the Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area and faces north
onto Queen’s Lane South. The Albyn Place/Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan (CACAMP) sets out that the conservation area is distinctive due to the
presence of Victorian built linear and grid streets, with back lanes accessing the majority of
properties. It further continues by setting out that one of the weaknesses and threats within the
Conservation Area is the potential loss of the original pattern and boundary walls of back land
development due to car parking and rear extensions, including the unsympathetic development of
large residential garages. It is important to note that the CACAMP identifies Queen’s Lane South
as the dividing line between two distinctive and separate character area — Character Area B to the
north (Queen’s Road and the south side of Albyn Place) and Character Area C to the south (south
of Queen’s Road). Character Area B is characterised by large, detached and substantially built 2
and 3 storey granite villas set within substantial feus, frequently in non-residential use and
sometimes with coach houses on the back lanes. In contrast, Character Area C comprises near
uniform asymmetrical terraces and semi-detached residential villas, many with modestly sized
garages on the back lanes.

Queen’s Lane South is a typical back lane, providing vehicular access to properties along the
north of Gladstone Place and south of Queens Road. The lane is currently characterised by a
combination of relatively low key residential garages and boundary walls to the south serving
properties on Gladstone Place, with a combination of boundary walls, car parks serving non-
residential buildings and some larger buildings along the northern side of the lane serving
properties fronting onto Queens Road, which is reflective of the lane being a dividing line between
the two Character Areas identified above. Adjoining the garage is 2 Queen’s Lane South — a 1%
storey relatively modern dwelling. This building can be considered a historical anomaly as historic
maps demonstrate that there always has been a building in that position going back as far as
1900. Other buildings on the south side of the lane are domestic garages of typical size and
designs. Whilst, there is a grouping two storey granite buildings located along the north side of
Queen’s Lane South, close to the junction with Forest Avenue, these are reflective and a
consequence of the different character and scale of properties to the north and generally former
coach houses originally serving properties on Queen’s Road, which are generally older than those
on Gladstone Place. These coach houses have been converted or replaced with buildings serving
other uses — often non-residential, including small offices, residential dwellings and additional
buildings serving Albyn School.

In this case, the proposal would result in an increase of the wall head height and ridge height of
the existing building to link into and match those of the adjoining dwellling at 2 Queen’s Lane
South. This would result in the creation of a lengthened continuous frontage along this lane filling
the plot width of both the application property and 2 Queen’s Lane South — a frontage of ¢.20m.
This continuous frontage would result in the clear definition between individual feus being lost.
Such clear definition between properties is a strong characteristic of the conservation area such
that the resultant building form would be uncharacteristic and would have a significant detrimental
impact on the character and appearance of this part of the conservation area. In addition, its

Page 106



Application Reference: 200557/DPP Page 5 of 6

increased height, including the overall wall head height and roof orientation would be considered
excessive and would not be considered complementary to the character of the back lane. Further,
it would not be in keeping with the existing use (garage) of the building or the proposed use
(garage/workshop) of the building. It would also not be in keeping with the character of the majority
of the other traditionally scaled garages on this side of the lane. The applicant is using the larger
building to the east (adjacent) as a reference for height and scale. However, that building is a
house, not a garage. The large majority of other buildings facing onto the lane are traditionally
scaled garages and should be used for context in terms of scale on the lane. Whilst, reinstating a
pitched roof would be acceptable, this could be done without increasing the wall head height.

Due to the excessive and inappropriate scale of the resultant building, the proposal would not
preserve of enhance the character of the conservation area, as sought by Section 64 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997. It would also be contrary
to policy D4 (Historic Environment), and relevant national policies, including SPP and HEPS.

Guidance contained within the Householder Development Guide in relation to outbuilding includes
the following:

e Outbuildings must always be subordinate in scale to the dwellinghouse and two storey
outbuildings will generally not be permitted.

e Where a second storey is to be accommodated within a pitched roofspace, outbuildings
should retain the impression of being single storey in height and dormers will not be
permitted as a means of gaining additional headroom.

e Outbuildings should not have a negative impact on the character of the surrounding
area.

e Where highly visible and especially in conservation areas, detached garages should be of a
scale and design that respects the prevalent context of the surrounding area.

In this instance, due to the increase in both the wall head height and the addition of the pitched
roof, the altered garage would have the same height as the adjacent 1% storey dwellinghouse. It
would therefore not retain, or result in, the impression of being single storey in height and the
proposed garage would appear to be a continuation of the house and not garage in terms of its
scale, height and massing when viewed from the lane. It would also not be in keeping with the
character of the majority of the other traditionally scaled garages on this side of the rear lane, and
as such is considered not to respect the prevalent context of the surrounding area. Considering
the proposed garage is highly visible from the back lane in this conservation area and its
unsympathetic scale compared to other more traditionally scaled garages within the surrounding
area, the proposed development would not comply with relevant Supplementary Guidance, in this
case the Householder Development Guide. As such, the proposal would be considered contrary to
Policies H1 (Residential Areas) and D1 (Quality Placemaking by Design) of the 2017 ALDP and
the Householder Development Guide.

In terms of the proposed materials, the Cedral cladding (cement fibre boarding) to the rear and
uPVC windows are more often used in modern buildings which are not considered to fit the
general conservation principle of using traditional or high-quality sympathetic modern materials in
conservation areas, and thus would not be acceptable in this instance.

Amenity

The proposed garage, given the current site context and existing boundary treatments, would have
a negligible impact to the residential amenity of the surrounding neighbouring properties in terms

Page 107



Application Reference: 200557/DPP Page 6 of 6

of privacy, daylight and sunlight, in accordance with the aims of Policies H1, D1 and D4 of the
ALDP, and the Householder Development Guide.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

Given the excessive and unsympathetic scale and massing of the resultant building in relation to
its surrounding context, it would adversely affect the pattern of back lane development on the
south side of Queen’s Lane South and the historic character and appearance of the surrounding
Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area, in particular Character Area C as defined and
delineated in the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and
Management Plan. The proposed materials (Cedral composite cladding and uPVC) are not
traditional or sympathetic materials and would not be appropriate in this context of the garden of a
historic building in a conservation area, as they would have a detrimental impact on the character
of the conservation area and therefore are not acceptable. The proposal would therefore conflict
with the principles of Scottish Planning Policy; the Historic Environment Policy for Scotland;
Policies H1 - Residential Areas, D1 - Quality Placemaking by Design and D4 - Historic
Environment of the Aberdeen Local Development Plan; the Council's supplementary guidance, in
this case the Householder Development Guide; and Policies D1 — Quality Placemaking, D2 —
Amenity, D6 - Historic Environment and H1 — Residential Areas of the Proposed Local
Development Plan. There are no other material planning considerations which would warrant
approval of planning permission in this instance.

Page 108



=,
-

ol
ABERDEEN

P IR
¥ COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100255791-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Description of Proposal

Please describe accurately the work proposed: * (Max 500 characters)

Garage roof conversion to pitched & workshop extension

Has the work already been started and/ or completed? *

No D Yes - Started D Yes — Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Page 1 of 6

Page 109




Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

James Huntley Architectural Services

Ref. Number:

First Name: *

James

Last Name: *

Huntley

Telephone Number: *

07736773642

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1
(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

Old Hall Buildings

Charlestown Road

Aboyne

United Kingdom

AB34 5EJ

Email Address: *

info@jharchitectural.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr
Other Title:

First Name: * M
Last Name: * Recht

Company/Organisation

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1
(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

Gladstone Place

Aberdeen

uk

AB10 6XA

Email Address: *

info@jharchitectural.co.uk

Page 110

Page 2 of 6




Site Address Details

Aberdeen City Council

Planning Authority:

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

2 GLADSTONE PLACE

HARLAW

ABERDEEN

AB10 6XA

Northing

805636

Easting

392414

Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *

|:| Yes No

Trees

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *

|:| Yes No

If yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if
any are to be cut back or felled.

Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new or altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *

|:| Yes No

If yes, please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing, altered or new access points, highlighting the changes

you proposed to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? *

D Yes No

Page 111

Page 3 of 6




Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 — TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? * Yes |:| No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? * D Yes No

Certificate Required

The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate

Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

| hereby certify that —

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at

the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: James Huntley
On behalf of: Mr M Recht
Date: 12/05/2020

Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 4 of 6

Page 112




Checklist — Application for Householder Application

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed

invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.
a) Have you provided a written description of the development to which it relates?. * Yes

b) Have you provided the postal address of the land to which the development relates, or if the land in question Yes
has no postal address, a description of the location of the land? *

c) Have you provided the name and address of the applicant and, where an agent is acting on behalf of the Yes
applicant, the name and address of that agent.? *

d) Have you provided a location plan sufficient to identify the land to which it relates showing the situation of the Yes
land in relation to the locality and in particular in relation to neighbouring land? *. This should have a north point
and be drawn to an identified scale.

e) Have you provided a certificate of ownership? * Yes
f) Have you provided the fee payable under the Fees Regulations? * Yes
g) Have you provided any other plans as necessary? * Yes

Continued on the next page

DNO
I:lNO

I:‘NO

I:lNO

I:lNO

DNO
DNO

A copy of the other plans and drawings or information necessary to describe the proposals
(two must be selected). *

You can attach these electronic documents later in the process.
Existing and Proposed elevations.

Existing and proposed floor plans.

Cross sections.

Site layout plan/Block plans (including access).

|:| Roof plan.

|:| Photographs and/or photomontages.

Additional Surveys — for example a tree survey or habitat survey may be needed. In some instances you D Yes
may need to submit a survey about the structural condition of the existing house or outbuilding.

A Supporting Statement — you may wish to provide additional background information or justification for your D Yes
Proposal. This can be helpful and you should provide this in a single statement. This can be combined with a
Design Statement if required. *

No

No

You must submit a fee with your application. Your application will not be able to be validated until the appropriate fee has been

Received by the planning authority.

Declare — For Householder Application

1, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for planning permission as described in this form and the accompanying

Plans/drawings and additional information.
Declaration Name: Mr James Huntley

Declaration Date: 12/05/2020

Page 113

Page 5 of 6




Payment Details

Online payment: ABSP00005178
Payment date: 12/05/2020 12:26:00

Created: 12/05/2020 12:26

Page 114

Page 6 of 6




APPLICATION REF NO. 200557/DPP

'BON ACCORD

Development Management
Strategic Place Planning

ABERDEEN Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street

Aberdeen, AB10 1AB
CITY COUNCIL Tel: 01224 523470 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

DECISION NOTICE

The Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Detailed Planning Permission

James Huntley

James Huntley Architectural Services
4 Old Hall Buildings

Charlestown Road

Aboyne

AB34 5EJ

on behalf of Mr M Recht

With reference to your application validly received on 12 May 2020 for the following
development:-

Formation of pitched roof to an existing garage to from store and single storey
workshop extension to rear
at 2 Gladstone Place, Harlaw

Aberdeen City Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act
hereby REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the said development in accordance
with the particulars given in the application form and the following plans and
documents:

Drawing Number Drawing Type

124 / PO1 Location Plan

124 / P03 Site Layout (Proposed)
124 / P04 Elevations and Floor Plans

REASON FOR DECISION
The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:-

Given the excessive and unsympathetic scale and massing of the resultant building
in relation to its surrounding context, it would adversely affect the pattern of back lane

Page 115


mailto:pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

development on the south side of Queen's Lane South and the historic character and
appearance of the surrounding Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area, in
particular Character Area C as defined and delineated in the Albyn Place and
Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan. The
proposed materials (Cedral composite cladding and uPVC) are not traditional or
sympathetic materials and would not be appropriate in this context of the garden of a
historic building in a conservation area, as they would have a detrimental impact on
the character of the conservation area and therefore are not acceptable. The
proposal would therefore conflict with the principles of Scottish Planning Policy; the
Historic Environment Policy for Scotland; Policies H1 - Residential Areas, D1 -
Quality Placemaking by Design and D4 - Historic Environment of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan; the Council's supplementary guidance, in this case the
Householder Development Guide; and Policies D1 - Quality Placemaking, D2 -
Amenity, D6 - Historic Environment and H1 - Residential Areas of the Proposed
Local Development Plan. There are no other material planning considerations which
would warrant approval of planning permission in this instance.

Date of Signing 2 October 2020

Dk Leweo

Daniel Lewis
Development Management Manager

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS DECISION

DETAILS OF ANY VARIATION MADE TO ORIGINAL PROPOSAL, AS AGREED
WITH APPLICANT (S32A of 1997 Act)

None.

RIGHT OF APPEAL
THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority —

a) to refuse planning permission;

b) to refuse approval, consent or agreement requried by a condition imposed on
a grant of planning permission;

c) to grant planning permission or any approval, consent or agreement subject to
conditions,

the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under section
43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months
from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be made on a ‘Notice of

Page 116



Review’ form available from the planning authority or at www.eplanning.scot.

Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to Strategic Place Planning
(address at the top of this decision notice).

SERVICE OF PURCHASE NOTICE WHERE INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY A
PLANNING DECISION

If permission to develop land is refused and the owner of the land claims that the
land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in it's existing state and
cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any
development that would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on the
planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the land’s
interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 117


http://www.eplanning.scot/

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



Agenda Item 3.3

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP)

e Policy H1 — Residential Areas
e Policy D1 - Quality Placemaking by Design
e Policy D4 - Historic Environment

Supplementary Guidance

Householder Development Guide
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2.1.PolicySG.HouseHoldDesignGuide.p
df

The Repair and Replacement of Windows and Doors
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/1.1.PolicySG.WindowsDoors.pdf

Other Material Considerations

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2020) (SDP)

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-
plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678

Page 119


https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2.1.PolicySG.HouseHoldDesignGuide.pdf
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2.1.PolicySG.HouseHoldDesignGuide.pdf
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/1.1.PolicySG.WindowsDoors.pdf
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 120



Agenda Iltem 3.4

-
{w)
ABERDEEN

P IR
¥ COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100255791-003

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

James Huntley Architectural Services

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
First Name: * James Building Name:
Last Name: * Huntley Building Number: 4
Telephone Number: * 07736773642 '(ASdt?;Z?)s:*1 Old Hall Buildings
Extension Number: Address 2: Charlestown Road
Mobile Number: Town/City: * Aboyne
Fax Number: Country: * United Kingdom
Postcode: * AB34 5EJ
Email Address: * info@jharchitectural.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual D Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 1 of 5

Page 121



Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * M Building Number: 2

Last Name: * Recht :(Asdttrjer(;?)sj Gladstone Place
Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: * Aberdeen
Extension Number: Country: * uk

Mobile Number: Postcode: * AB1T0 XA
Fax Number:

Email Address: * info@jharchitectural.co.uk

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: 2 GLADSTONE PLACE

Address 2: HARLAW

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement: ABERDEEN

Post Code: AB10 6XA

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 805636 Easting 392414

Page 122

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Garage roof conversion to pitched & workshop extension

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application.

|:| Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

|:| No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Disagree on all grounds as to why the alterations were refused, along with all the alternative options proposed, see appeal
statement which argues our case

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the |:| Yes No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 3 of 5

Page 123




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Appeal Statement, Applicant introductory Statement, Applicant Appeal Slides, Original Application Documents, Decision Notice
and Delegated Report

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 200557/DPP
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 12/05/2020

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 02/10/2020

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

Yes D No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * Yes D No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * D Yes No

Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name Yes D No D N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Page 4 of 5

Page 124




Declare — Notice of Review

I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Mr James Huntley

Declaration Date: 23/12/2020

Page 125

Page 50of 5




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 126



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Appeal Statement

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 Detailed Planning Permission

Refused Planning Permission at:

2 Gladstone Place, Aberdeen, AB10 6XA

Council: Aberdeen City Council
Application Ref: 200557/DPP

Date: 04/10/20

G s = 4 Old Hall Buildings

| <£U

,Tf% | C I AT James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

L (] Aboyne, AB34 5Ej
CHARTERED PRACTICE { Page 127 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Introduction

The appeal is made under Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 against a refusal to grant
planning permission.

The appeal is made by James Huntley Architectural Services (the agent), on behalf of Mr & Mrs. M
Recht (the applicant), against the decision of Aberdeen City Council

Application reference 200557/DPP, dated 12 May 2020, was refused by notice received 2 October
2020. The application sought permission to form a pitched roof to the existing garage to form a
store/workshop, along with a single storey extension to rear, comprising of a workshop .

Copies of the application made to the council, the decision notice and delegated report are
enclosed separately with this submission.

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 128 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Main Issues

First Issue:

"Given the excessive and unsympathetic scale and massing of the resultant building in relation to its
surrounding context, it would adversely affect the pattern of back lane development on the south
side of Queen's Lane South and the historic character and appearance of the surrounding Albyn
Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area, in particular Character Area C as defined and delineated in
the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan."

The roof alterations are both ‘modest” and ‘sympathetic’, since it would follow and fit with the
architectural lines of the existing adjacent property, sitting in line with the eaves and ridge. See the
elevation drawings and 3D render for more detail. In terms of the concern expressed in the Report
of Handling of "clear definition between individual feus being lost", we contend that the coping
stones delineating the properties would clearly prevent this. Also the concern that the "proposed
garage would appear to be a continuation of the house and not a garage in terms of its scale, height
and massing when viewed from the lane" is hard to understand given the presence of a double
garage door and no windows, along with the garage harling being a darker shade that the adjacent
house.

Within approved planning applications 141455 & 200890 it can be shown that the council accepts
similar scale and massing, which can be seen in the elevations, where it shows the adjacent
properties being of a far smaller scale and mass compared to the proposed building.

Application 141455 was determined stating: "The proposed garage is considered to be of an
acceptable scale, design and would have minimal impact on residential character and amenity or on
the visual character of the area. It is considered that the proposals would preserve the character of
the Conservation Area."

and Application 200890 was determined stating: "The proposed replacement garage is appropriate
in relation to the character and appearance of the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area. The
proposal therefore shows due regard for its context relative to the character of the associated
dwellinghouse".

Puzzling then, that this application is deemed "excessive and unsympathetic scale and massing of
the resultant building in relation to its surrounding context”. Unlike this application the proposals
above are deemed acceptable, apparently not being “excessive"” or having a “unsympathetic scale”,
nor having an "adverse affect to the pattern of back lane development on the south side of Queen's
Lane South and the historic character and appearance of the surrounding Albyn Place and Rubislaw
Conservation Area”, despite all the applications being within Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation
Area.

When reviewing the pattern of the back lane, it is clear that some designs have followed the same
rule this application has, whereby the scale and mass of the adjacent properties have determined
the size/scale/mass of the proposed. This can be seen in planning applications 130899, where the

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 129 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

eaves and ridge align. It is even clearer from applications 140650 & 140651 which are very similar to
this one regarding style, firstly the eaves and ridge tie in at the same height, secondly there being
tabling between the two roofs, to distinguish the two properties.

Second Issue:

"The proposed materials (Cedral composite cladding and uPVC) are not traditional or sympathetic
materials and would not be appropriate in this context of the garden of a historic building in a
conservation area, as they would have a detrimental impact on the character of the conservation
area and therefore are not acceptable.”

A cursory search of the Aberdeen planning register reveals the occasional use of Cedral cladding
(planning ref 191623) and numerous occasions that uPVC windows (planning ref 150045, 150331,
151229, 151230, 171094, 180488, 181972 amongst many others) have been approved within the
conservation area in question. Curious then, that these materials are deemed "not to be
appropriate in this context of the garden of a historic building in a conservation area". Contrary to
this applicants proposed works, these materials are deemed acceptable, apparently not being “not
traditional"” or “sympathetic materials” and not having a "detrimental impact on the character of
the conservation area”, despite again all the applications being within the Albyn Place and Rubislaw
Conservation Area.

This application is no different than the others as the uPVC and Cedral are within the garden space,
thus would have no impact on the visual character of the Queens Lane South street-scape, as the
materials in question are rarely visible from a public vantage point. During the application process
the planners suggested the use of powder coated aluminium instead of uPVC, but it is very hard to
understand why this is considered a more traditional material and therefore acceptable.

Note that the existing property was granted planning permission ref:072072 on 18/10/07 for uPVC
windows to the rear (and wooden sash and case to the front), the adjoining property at 2 Queens
Lane South has uPVC windows as does an extension at 4 Gladstone Place approved 23/5/14
ref:140779.

During the application process, the applicant proposed to switch to harling to match the existing
and the planners confirmed this would be acceptable, if the LRB is minded to grant the application
we would have no issue with the use of harling being specified as a condition if they felt this a
better alternative.

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 130 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Third Issue:

"Character Area C as defined and delineated in the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area
Character Appraisal and Management Plan."

The council invoked Supplementary Guidance: Character Area C as a reason to justify the proposals
refusal, but didn’t point to any specific passages, clauses or provisions in the document that the
proposed works could be said to contravene, perhaps because the document states under ltem
3.3.7 - "There are no negative features for the public realm relating to character areas C, D and E". If
that was correct why are uPVC, Cedral and the scale and mass of this proposal refused, when its
clear passed applications have been approved with these finishes and scale.

This document, also refers to Area C as "having a distinctive rhythm due to the symmetrical nature
of the buildings, the linear street pattern”, which this applicants proposal would ensure. It also
notes "There are a number of garage styles and forms but most are modest in scale"”, however, as
detailed above it is clearly shown that any new approved garages are not modest in scale when
compared to existing garages.

Fourth Issue:

"The proposal would therefore conflict with the principles of the Council's supplementary guidance,
in this case the Householder Development Guide"

During the planning process the planners referenced the Householder Development Guide and
specifically section 3.1.6 Outbuildings. The below are the main rules of this section:

*Outbuildings must always be subordinate in scale to the dwellinghouse and two storey outbuildings

will generally not be permitted.

The main dwellinghouse is 2 1/2 storeys and the proposed garage would be 1 1/2 storeys so
subordinate in scale and not a 2 storey outbuilding so satisfying this rule.

*Where a second storey is to be accommodated within a pitched roof space, outbuildings should
retain the impression of being single storey in height and dormers will not be permitted as a means
of gaining additional headroom.

No dormers are proposed and we believe the addition of a pitched roof set at the same eaves level
as the house will give the impression of being single storey so satisfying this rule.

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 131 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

*Outbuildings should not have a negative impact on the character of the surrounding area.

We believe our previous arguments in the appeal document to have shown the proposal will
actually have a positive impact on the character of the surrounding area, so satisfying this rule.

*Where highly visible and especially in conservation areas, detached garages should be of a scale

and design that respects the prevalent context of the surrounding area.

Firstly the garage is not detached, however taking onboard this rule the photos in Appendix 1 show
that the garage is not highly visible, particularly given that the property to the north is a playground
and not a dwellinghouse. The surface area of the garage is not being altered. It is proposed to
replace the atypical, almost flat roof with a pitched roof style more prevalent in the area, resulting
in a scale and design consistent with other buildings, so satisfying this rule.

As all rules have been satisfied we believe the design is complying with the Householder
Development Guide.

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 132 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Summary

To summarise our arguments:

The above is by no means the only example of the council’s apparent inconsistency, of application,
of its own standards of works within a conservation area.

Taken together the above clearly shows that the council does not apply its planning standards fairly
and evenly, and has taken an indefensible subjective position, given the precedents established
elsewhere in Aberdeen's Conservation Areas, against the applicants modestly sized and sensible
proposal.

The council’s refusal appears based on personal bias and subjective judgement of ‘scale and mass’,
one which does not reflect their own approvals on passed applications. Furthermore, this decision
does not appear to be consistent with the approval of other garages, window replacements or
cladding finish in the vicinity, while arguments about the proposal’s unsympathetic and excessive
scale and mass are rendered incoherent by the approval of other garages that have a larger scale
elsewhere in the Albyn and Rubislaw Conservation area.

The agent and applicant could find no ways in which the proposed was contrary to The Council's
Supplementary Guidance on 'Character Area C as defined and delineated in the Albyn Place and
Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management Plan, nor the Householder
Development Guide section 3.1.6 Outbuildings. This perhaps explains why the council was reduced
to vaguely motioning in the direction of these documents and policies, rather than identifying any
clauses or provisions which the proposed alterations contravened.

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 133 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Conclusion

The proposed roof alterations & extension do not contravene any provisions in any document, as
demonstrated above, the agent and applicant believe that the council’s decision should be
overturned, and the proposed roof replacement and extension should be allowed to go ahead,
including materials proposed, however, as noted above the agent and client are accepting of
changing the Cedral cladding to harling to match existing or one of the alternative roof
arrangements noted in the Applicants Introductory Statement if the LRB felt it was a better solution.

4 Old Hall Buildings

James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road

Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE Page 134 07736773642

info@jharchitectural.co.uk



A James Huntley Architectural Services

Appendix 1

[P 4 Old Hall Buildings
ﬁ@fﬁ C IAT J James Huntley Bsc MCIAT Charlestown Road
b= L Aboyne, AB34 5E

CHARTERED PRACTICE I% Page 135 07736773642

info@iharchitectural.co.uk



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Applicant Introductory Statement - Application Ref: 200557/DPP

There are 3 main objectives of the application (i) Render the existing garage useable in cold/humid
weather as the current metal roof suffers from significant condensation (despite being insulated), by
creating a traditional pitched slate roof (ii) Create an area in the roof-space for storage and model-
making/ hobby electronics (iii) Build a workshop extension for stained glass work & painting.

The applicant and agent had numerous exchanges with the planning department in order to try and
address their concerns, but a solution that would satisfy the project objectives and planners’
requirements could not be found.

Fig 1: Proposed design, clearly showing
demarcation of properties and that the garage
is not an extension of the adjoining house

- I

s Fig 1b: Proposed design front elevation to show “undistorted” scale

: —— :
R s Y Y &ﬁ‘ . 2 v m

LR
it AW

In layman’s terms, my understanding at a high level of the main concern of the planners was to
clearly distinguish between the existing garage and adjoining house at 2 Queen’s Lane South (No2)
by reducing the proposed ridge height by 0.5m. With our proposed design there would be an area
approximately 2.3m wide running the length of the garage that you could walk upright in. Lowering
the ridge height by 0.5m would mean you could not walk upright in it at all.

Whilst | personally believe that matching the existing roof line of the adjoining house would be the
most attractive design and completely in-keeping with other buildings in the area, this was not
accepted. The coping stones would have clearly shown the demarcation between properties. Note
that there are several existing garage type buildings in Queen's Lane South that are a similar height
to that proposed (see Appendix 1), and also a very recent non-conventional building over 6m high at
No 19, constructed by Albyn school.

Page 137



We explained that the proposal by the planning department to reduce the wall head height and
keep the same pitch angle with the ridge reduced by 0.5m could not be done because of the garage
door and associated mechanism, but this did not seem to be understood.

Fig 2: Planners’ proposed design that will not accommodate
existing door & mechanism and therefore cannot work

We therefore proposed a compromise to keep the existing wall head height and match the existing
pitch of No2 which would clearly stagger the roof lines and still provide some (reduced) workspace
in the roofspace but again this was rejected.

Fig 3: Compromise proposed, keeping the
existing wall head height and matching the
existing pitch of No2 Queen’s Lane South

We then proposed to introduce a flat section satisfying the reduction of 0.5m in the roof height and
mirroring the recent Albyn School design at 19 Queen’s Lane South, but again this was rejected.

Page 138



Fig 4: Compromise proposed, introducing a flat
section to the roof, satisfying the reduction of
0.5m in the roof height and mirroring the recen
Albyn School design at 19 Queen’s Lane South

If the LRB was minded to grant the appeal, we would have no issue with either of our proposed
compromises being specified as a condition.

In the case where due to the pandemic, the LRB felt a site visit inadvisable, close up photos of the
existing garage showing the proposed roof area from the street are shown in Appendix 3. | believe
this allows the observer to clearly see that this would not produce a result of excessive and
unsympathetic scale and massing.

We believe the LRB are best qualified to judge the most appropriate procedure by which to conduct
the review but would be happy to provide any additional information, participate in any hearing or
attend a site visit if required.

It seems unduly penalising not to permit an adaptation of the garage roof to enhance its amenity for
the desired use when this does not seem inconsistent with other buildings in the street which do not
appear to have created a harmful visual impact. | would have thought that having a slate roof
matching the existing adjoining house would look in character and certainly more appealing than the
huge variety of other garages in the lane which in some cases are very ramshackle (see Appendix 2).
| was hoping that this would be an opportunity to upgrade the visual appeal of at least one building
in Queen's Lane South which was something welcomed by the neighbours with whom | discussed
this. Note that there were no neighbour objections whatsoever to the application.

We note that the reasons for refusal refer only to the proposed roof and not to the formation of the
workshop extension proposed to the rear of the garage. As such, this proposed workshop extension
is understood to be acceptable.

Mark Recht

22/12/20

Page 139



Appendix 1 — Examples of other Tall Garages/ Buildings in Queens Lane South

Page 140



Appendix 2 — Examples of “ramshackle” garages in Queens Lane South demonstrating the
potential for the proposal to enhance the character of the area

Page 141



Appendix 3 — Close-up photos showing proposed roof area of existing garage

Page 142



et T obed

Applicant Main Points Supporting Appeal

Application Ref: 200557/DPP 2 Gladstone Place, Aberdeen, AB10 6XA

* Considerable effort & alternative solutions proposed by applicant to satisfy planners’ demands regarding

roof height — see following slides. No compromise accepted, leading to roofspace being unuseable as a
work area. Original & proposed amendments would all

* Be Modest and sympathetic

Claimed unsympathetic and excessive scale and mass are rendered incoherent by the approval of other garages that have a larger
scale elsewhere in the Albyn and Rubislaw Conservation area

* No change to surface area of garage

* Would follow and fit with the architectural lines of the existing adjacent property
Maintain the delineation between individual feus

* Coping stones, Darker harling, Clearly a garage (double door, no windows on lane side)
Be Compliant with the Householder Development Guide — Outbuildings requirements

Subordinate to dwellinghouse, No dormers, 1.5 storeys, Positive impact vs existing roof or other “ramshackle” garages in lane, Not
highly visible

Be consistent with the Albyn Place and Rubislaw Conservation Area Character Appraisal and Management
Plan - Character Area C

No negative features for the public realm relating to character areas C, D and E
Supporting a distinctive rhythm due to the symmetrical nature of the buildings, the linear street pattern

* Inconsistent application of standards within a conservation area on a subjective basis

* How can powder coated aluminium be considered more traditional than uPVvC ?
* Main dwellinghouse & adjoining properties use uPVC some with recent planning approvals

* Cedral cladding used elsewhere in the lane, but in any case proposed alternative of harling to match existing accepted



Fig 1: Proposed design, clearly showing
demarcation of properties and that the garage
is not an extension of the adjoining house

17T obeg

Sketches showing Initial Design &

Fig 1b: Proposed design front elevation to show “undistorted” scale

~c’h,

A3

Planners’ Suggestion which cannot accommodate door mechanism

Fig 2: Planners’ proposed design that will not accommodate
existing door & mechanism and therefore cannot work

v -




Sketches showing Compromises Proposed
to Satisfy Planners’ Requirements

Fig 3: Compromise proposed, keeping the
existing wall head height and matching the
existing pitch of No2 Queen’s Lane South

Fig 4: Compromise proposed, introducing a flat
section to the roof, satisfying the reduction of
0.5m in the roof height and mirroring the recent
Albyn School design at 19 Queen’s Lane South




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 146



LOCAL REVIEW BODY

200265/DPP — Appeal against refusal of planning
permission for:

‘Erection of single storey extension to side and
formation of carport and garden room/gym’

The Highfield, Borrowstone Road

e &=4 BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

T W)l epusby



gy T obed

Location Plan




Location Plan: GIS

(LY

5 _P_?:an‘ Bidy i

—~--~\“0§1,T~—---



ion

Locat

(@
ad
@
i -
(a1
S
-
Q
<




TGT obed

r’\i_-é('"

., o

»

é'.

-
-
-

Photo: Existing Garage (front)




O
S
(7))
-
Q
o0
(L)
p .
©
O
]
=
d
2
X
Ll

Photo




ion of works

: Locat

Photo




.....
e

The Highfield The Highfield

vGT abed

Ex Site Plan PRO Site Plan
Scsie 1:200 3041 ‘Seale 1200 3841

EXISTING PROPOSED



T [ N ' I —'—'ﬂ" ' '
24030 |
FRONT (WEST) ELEVATION  scale 1:100 at A1
EXISTING
\‘\?“x

Material Key

E Bullnosed Fyfestone to match
exisitng

Roughcast Dry Dash to match

exisitng

Concrete Roof-Tiles to match

it PROPOSED

Redwood Facias to match

exisitng, timber doors &

windows to match




9GT abed

3707

)

00

2070

24030

370

REAR (EAST) ELEVATION

Scale 1:100 at A1

EXISTING

e i
Iiﬁ‘
e &

Proposed
Extension

|

D S0 nne] D s lunnel
o= L

3707

]
|

B00mm wide

L

Material Key

Bullnosed Fyfestone to match
exisitng

Roughcast Dry Dash to match
exisitng

Concrete Roof-Tiles to match
existing

Redwood Facias to match
exisitng, timber doors &
windows to match

5700

37Tl | 2070

PROPOSED



|

SIDE (NORTH) ELEVATION

Scale 1:100 at A1

M~

4

(2]

{ I

D Q

M~

[==]

o™

14320 0

e

EXISTING

L]

Material Key

Bullnosed Fyfestone to match
exisitng

Roughcast Dry Dash to match
exisitng

Concrete Roof-Tiles to match
existing

Redwood Facias to match
exisitng, timber doors &
windows to match

9820

2141

2070 | 1566
4

PROPOSED



XISTING

961?_#

Prepased
Carpart  Carport

e T T T T T T T T T L1

3707

14320

2070

SIDE (SOUTH) ELEVATION

Scale 1:100 at A1

Existing Garage

Existing Garage

L
1

12100

PROPOSED




1999

L |
2
EXISTING A
6570
_U
Q
[ e i
D
=
% :wﬁ Proposad Existing Garage

|
7

12100 ,

Garage Extension Finishes

PROPOSED -vertical larch linings

All others materials to match existing



EXISTING
e v
o
6530 j, 2
-
Q
g
@
H
o))
o Frisie Gersas Carport Carpart Sunroom
2
@
4
(=]
&
- 200 o
[o5]

Garage Extension Finishes

PROPOSED -vertical larch linings

All others materials to match existing



—N
[e0]
o
o
N
AT
0
0
o
N
EXISTING .
- TN\ J—
9810 &
N
U
jabl
[
m P
= Existing Garage
(o))
=
—

PROPOSED



EXISTING

29T obed

PROPOSED

|

L 2008

]
[ 1
2280

Low level
retaining
wall

Garage Extension Finishes
-vertical larch linings
All others materials to match existing



€97 abed

+0083m

MASTER ==l BEDROCOM 2 \
BEDROOM :
EFL
BADDm
N g
+383m
LOUNGE
+9.76m
+B.A4Tm
FFL +8.35m fsf
i f +3.28m
)
\
\ 35m +8.34m

+9.22m



|
7 s

T | _—,_;.r-_-_t_:!-ﬁrr-‘a- 2 L_;

i a T

9T abed

Lo

2

PROJECT DETAILS

Evtaneinm bn




—_—
PROJECT DETAILS
—_—

Extensicn lo

Highbeld,

Whest Hation, Kingewets,
Aberdeen, AB1S SRX
for My & Mrs Codsrman

T
an

ctmr e












Diaat Canopy Radius (m)

AOT abrAd

Species 1.5m Height RPA Age (Class Description Action
N s E w (m (m)
(cm)
Beech 76 8.5 16 9.1 M C Twin-stemmed from 3.25m. Tree appears healthy. Retain.
Beech 81 10 18 9.7 M B Mainly one-sided to north-west. Tree has slight lean but appears healthy. Retain.
3 Beech 92 10 20 110 M A Canopy extends into garden area and is mainly one-sided to south Retain.

J4 Beech 98 1 20 1.8 M A Twin-stemmed from 3.5m. Tree appears healthy. Retain.
) 5 Beech 96 7 12 1.5 M B One main stem with three smaller branches at 1.25m. Tree leans south-east Retain.
) with one-sided canopy to south and south-east. Canopy suppressed to west
) but tree appears healthy.
AY
) Beech 87 10.5 16 10.4 M C Bark damage at 1.6m to east. Twin-stemmed from 3m, tree leans south. One-  Retain.
D sided canopy to south. Tree appears healthy.

Beech 127 1 10.5 18 15.2 M B Twin-stemmed from 2.1m. Tree has slight lean north, one-sided canopy to Retain.

north. Canopy suppressed to south by neighbouring tree.
Beech 84 1 14 10.1 M B Four mzin stems from 1.9m. Canopy one-sided to south and south-west. Retain.

Canopy suppressed to north. Tree appears healthy.




and Garage

Arborlculural Assessment

at Hightheld, Kingswelks

Exdsting House

xe c3uds
MiNTEe, fowden BT

Godsman

: |NA
-
OO il it

Do rke | HWH-2007-AA

e De: | 020772020
ty: | L)

L :

# 1260 st A3

bt Mr & Mrs

21 gl Crencant

Page 170




< @ 2
B

2
8 3
-

2

Proposed Extenglon to House and Garage
fleld, Kingswells

at HightleM, Kings
Arborlcultural Impact

2] |

HE
SBRLH
33
mmm
M -~
HHEE
NHLAR
HHEHHE

se: [ 1:250 st
@O uilumichls

(]

il

2 N JU X &

S 77 : S A\ i 5y o

/NN
N D ;




Tree Survey: Tree Protection and Management

Trees to retain
Fell for health and safety

O

o

. Fell for development
=

Root protection area

2/ T obed

Tree protection fencing

Cellular confinement system
Root area lost to foundation

Relocated oil tank on CCS

e Site boundary

Proposed Extenslon to House and Garage
at Highfield, Kingswells
Tree Protection and Management

Clnt: Mr & Mrs

Orsing thx | HWH-2007-TP

Issue Date: | 07/07/2020

Orawnby: | LW Icnncind by: ]NA
Revdon: IMDIh: I
Sesla: 1:250 at A3

arbockuthral, anvWormensal und lwndecopa consubans
26 Binghdl Cresoeal, Milimber Aberceen, AB13 (5




o
Q
«Q
D
=
~
w

=2

—n7)
O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Proposal would result in significant impact on the root protection area of
5no mature beech trees (outside site in different ownership)

Would also result in significant encroachment within the ‘Zone of
Influence’ 7no further mature beech trees (outside site in different
ownership)

contrary to policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the ALDP and associated
‘Trees and Woodlands SG’

Highlights conflict with corresponding policies of Proposed ALDP

No other material considerations that would warrant approval of the
application.



Applicant’s Case for Review

Stated in supporting statement. Key points:

/T obed.

Highlights that the appeal turns on conflict with one policy only (NE5: Trees and Woodlands). The
reason for refusal does not specifically say what is unacceptable about the proposal in terms of the
information which was provided to assess and mitigate for Root Protection Areas (RPA) and Zone of
Influence (Zol)

Contends that there is no conflict with ALDP Policy NE5 or the associated Supplementary Guidance as
impacts on the RPA’s and the Zol have been adequately addressed and mitigations proposed

The house, garage and part of the garden are already located within the RPA and Zol of some of the
trees, these trees have not been adversely affected by this and the proposed extensions would not
have a considerable or significant impact on the trees

There is no alternative location to locate the required extensions on the ground floor

The layout, siting and design of the proposal is otherwise acceptable as is the development in all other
respects

Transport Scotland have advised that the trees are not a safety concern and there is no need for their
removal as a result of the proposed development. Transport Scotland will be responsible for
monitoring, management and maintenance of the trees as necessary to maintain their health

ACC’s inflexible approach to development which is in the RPA or Zol of trees is inconsistent with the
British Standard BS5837:2012 and insufficient regard has been given to the proposed mitigation



o
Q
«Q
D
=
~
(6]

N &=4 BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

ACC will protect, promote and enhance the landscape value of the
Green Space Network

Proposals that are likely to destroy or erode the character and/or
function of the GSN will not be permitted

Development which has a negative impact on existing features of
value to natural heritage, open space, landscape and recreation
should be mitigated through enhancement of the Green Space
Network



Policy NE2 (Green Belt)

* Note preamble on aim of green belt (below) — not merely for purposes of
visual or environmental protection

3.101 The aim of the Green Belt is to maintain the
distinet identity of Aberdeen and the communities
within and around the city, by defining their physical
boundaries clearly. Safeguarding the Green Beit
helps to avoid coalescence of settlements and
sprawling development on the edge of the city,
maintaining Aberdeen’s landscape setting and
providing access to open space. The Green Belt
directs planned growth to the most appropriate
lecations and supports regeneration.

9/ T abed

* No development other than that which is essential for:
e Agriculture
 Woodland and forestry
* Recreational uses compatible with agricultural or natural setting
* Mineral extraction/quarry restoration
e Landscape renewal



Policy NE2 (Green Belt)

/. T obed

Then sets out further list of exceptions:

* Small-scale expansion of existing uses in GB

e Essential infrastructure which cannot be accommodated other
than in GB

* Conversion of historic/vernacular buildings

* Extension of buildings above as part of conversion scheme

* Replacement of existing houses on one-for-one basis

Requirement that all development in the Green Belt is of the highest quality
in terms of siting, scale, design and materials.



o
Q
«Q
D
=
~
oo

- BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Presumption against development that would result in the loss of, or
damage to, trees and woodlands that contribute to nature
conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate change
adaptation and mitigation.

Buildings and services should be sited so as to minimise adverse
impacts on existing and future trees.

Measures should be taken for the protection and long-term
management of existing trees and new planting, both during and after
construction.

Applications affecting trees to include details of tree protection
measures, compensatory planting etc.



o
Q

«Q
D
=
~
(e}

ﬁWMMFF
5

G

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Relates to protection of sites and species covered by
environmental/ecological designations, including bats
(European Protected Species)

Bat Survey provided in support of the application.
Concluded that the existing dwelling and garage did not
provide opportunities for roosting and no roosts were
observed on site.



All dev’t must “ensure high standards of design and have a strong and
distinctive sense of place which is a result of context appraisal,
detailed planning, quality architecture, craftsmanship and materials”.

Proposals will be assessed against the following six essential qualities:

-
QD
«Q
@
= - Distinctive
(@)
© - Welcoming
- Safe and pleasant
- Easy to move around
- Adaptable
- Resource-efficient
HZS,,
R, \g
L%
ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL



Extensions should:

* Be “architecturally compatible with original house and surrounding
area” (design, scale etc)

* Should not ‘dominate or overwhelm’ the original house. Should remain
visually subservient.

-
QD
®
B e Should not result in adverse impact on privacy, daylight, amenity
H
* Approvals pre-dating this guidance do not represent a ‘precedent’
* Footprint of dwelling should not exceed twice that of original house
* No more than 50% of front or rear curtilage may be covered (anything
oz O less than that considered on its merits)

[ G \g
32.( 5 * Max. size of extensions to detached dwellings will be assessed on
ABERDEEN individual merit

CITY COUNCIL



o
Q
«Q
D
=
(@)
N

\12 BON ACCORD ’

R

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Qutbuildings

In many cases ancillary buildings may be classed as permitted
development. Where planning permission is required, the following
rules will apply:

Qutbuildings must always be subordinate in scale to the
dwellinghouse and two storey outbuildings will generally not be
permitted;

Where a second storey is to be accommodated within a pitched
roofspace, outbuildings should retain the impression of being single
storey in height and dormers will not be permitted as a means of
gaining additional headroom;

Access to an upper floor should be situated internally;

QOutbuildings should not have a negative impact on the character of
the surrounding area;

Where highly visible and especially in conservation areas, detached
garages should be of a scale and design that respects the prevalent
context of the surrounding area;

Proposals will be assessed on their impact on the amenity of the
area (e.g. loss of daylight/privacy) in the same way as extensions;

QOutbuildings will not usually be acceptable in front gardens because
of the damaging impact development forward of a front building line
can have on the visual character of an area.



o
Q
«Q
D
=
(0]
w

- BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Sets out that trees within 15m of site boundary must be shown on
plans for household apps and tree surveys by qualified professionals
may be required

Explains concept of Root Protection Areas, within which
encroachment should generally be avoided if trees are to be
retained, and use of protection fencing to avoid damage to root
systems during construction

Explains ‘Zone of Influence’ in assessing future threat to trees due to
proximity of development



o
Q
«Q
D
=
(0]
i

- BON ACCORD ’

O

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

Zoning: Is development of the type proposed supported in principle by policy NE2 (Green Belt)?

Design: Is the proposal of sufficient design quality (D1) - having regard for factors such as scale,
siting, footprint, proportions relative to original, materials, colour etc? Does the proposal satisfy
the requirements of policy NE2 (Green Belt) as regards development being of ‘the highest quality in
terms of siting, scale, design and materials’? Does it accord with the general principles set out in
the ‘Householder Development Guide’, specifically as regards extensions and outbuildings?

Trees: Is the proposal consistent with policy NE5’s requirements for the protection of existing trees,
allowing for future growth?

Green Space Network: Would the proposal destroy or erode the character or function of the GSN?

1. Does the proposal comply with the Development Plan when considered as a whole?

2. Are there any material considerations that outweigh the Development Plan in this instance?

Decision — state clear reasons for decision

Conditions? (if approved — Planning Adviser can assist)



Agenda Item 4.2

Strategic Place Planning

ABERDEEN | Report of Handling

CITY COUNCIL

Site Address: The Highfield, Borrowstone Road, Aberdeen, AB15 8RX

gpplic.ati'on. Erection of single storey extension to side and formation of carport and garden room/gym
escription:

Application Ref: 200265/DPP

Application Type: Detailed Planning Permission

Application Date: 4 March 2020

Applicant: Mr Douglas Godsman

Ward: Kingswells/Sheddocksley/Summerhill

Community Council: | Kingswells

Case Officer: Dineke Brasier

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

APPLICATION BACKGROUND

Site Description

A detached bungalow with detached double garage set in the east corner of a substantial
residential curtilage extending to ¢.6200m?. Both the dwelling and garage are of a modern design
and finished in render and Fyfestone with a red tiled roof. The dwelling has been previously
extended with a conservatory to the south elevation.

The site is located in the green belt and is covered by the green space network. To the north is the
Three Hills Local Nature Conservation Site; to the east the AWPR; to the south two further
dwellings — West Hatton and The Bothy beyond which are agricultural fields; and to the west
agricultural fields. There are mature trees along the north and west boundary.

Relevant Planning History

None

APPLICATION DESCRIPTION

Description of Proposal
The application consists of two distinct elements:

1. A single storey extension to the north elevation projecting ¢.5.6m, extending across the full
width of the dwelling (c.8.9m), providing an additional bedroom, walk-in wardrobes, and two
bathrooms. The west elevation would contain a hipped roof bay window with additional
smaller windows in the west, north and east elevation. Proposed finishes would match the
existing dwelling and include bullnosed Fyfestone and roughcast for the walls, and concrete
roof tiles for the roof;

Page 185



Application Reference: 200265/DPP Page 2 of 5

2. A garden room/ gym and double width carport attached to the existing double garage. The
car port would have a width of c.ém and a depth of c.7.2m, with the garden room/gym
measuring ¢.6.1m by c.7.2m. The garden room/gym would have a pitched roof with gables
to the front and rear, matching the roof profile of the existing double garage. Proposed
finishes would include vertical timber linings for the wall and concrete tiles to match the
existing roof. Full height windows would be integrated in the south and west elevations.

Supporting Documents
All drawings and supporting documents listed below can be viewed on the Council’s website at:

https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?active Tab=documents&keyVal=Q069GAKBZG3F00

Bat Roost Potential Survey by Astell Associates, dated 8™ July 2020; and
Tree Survey Report by Astell Associates, dated 7" July 2020.

CONSULTATIONS

Kingswells Community Council — None received

REPRESENTATIONS

None

MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS

Legislative Requirements

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 require that where,
in making any determination under the planning acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the
Development Plan and that determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as
material to the application unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

National Planning Policy and Guidance
Scottish Planning Policy — Green belt — paragraph 52

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2017)
D1: Quality Placemaking by Design

NE1l: Green Space Network

NE2: Green Belt

NE5: Trees and Woodland

NE8: Natural Heritage

Supplementary Guidance
Trees and Woodlands

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)
The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (Proposed ALDP) was approved at the Council
meeting of 2 March 2020. The Proposed ALDP constitutes the Council’s settled view as to what
the final content of the next adopted ALDP should be and is now a material consideration in the
determination of planning applications. The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2017 will continue
to be the primary document against which applications are considered. The exact weight to be
given to matters contained in the Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to
specific applications will depend on whether —

+ these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main Issues Report;

Page 186


https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q69GAKBZG3F00
https://publicaccess.aberdeencity.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=Q69GAKBZG3F00

Application Reference: 200265/DPP Page 3 of 5

and,
» the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main Issues Report; and,
+ the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration.

The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis, however the relevant policies are:
D1: Quality Placemaking

D2: Amenity

NE1l: Green Belt

NE2: Green and Blue Infrastructure

NE5: Trees and Woodland

EVALUATION

Principle of Development
The site is located in the green belt and policy NE2 (Green Belt) applies. This policy sets out that
no development in the green belt would be permitted, unless it is considered essential for
agriculture, woodland and forestry, recreational uses compatible with an agricultural or nature
setting, mineral extraction/quarry restoration, or landscape renewal. In this case, the proposal
would be for householder development, and none of the above would apply. However, the
following exception applies to this policy for proposals for development associated with existing
activities in the green belt, but only if all of the following criteria are met:

1. The development is within the boundary of the existing activity;

2. The development is small-scale;

3. The intensity of activity is not significantly increased;

4. Any proposed built construction is ancillary to what exists.
In addition, all development should be of the highest quality in terms of siting, scale, design and
materials.

In this case, the proposal is for an extension to the existing dwelling at The Highfield and
construction of a garden room/gym and car port attached to the existing garage. All development
would fall within the existing residential curtilage, and as such would be within the boundary of the
existing activity. It would be considered small-scale and the intensity of activity on the site would
not be increased as it would serve the existing dwelling on the site. In addition, due to its scale and
massing, the development would be clearly ancillary to what currently exists on the site. The
proposal would therefore be considered to meet these criteria of policy NE2 (Green Belt), and the
principle of development would generally be compliant with this policy.

Issues in relation to siting, scale, design and materials will be discussed below.

As the site is located within the Green Space Network, the proposal will need to be assessed
against policy NE1 (Green Space Network). This policy sets out that proposals for development
that are likely to destroy or erode the character and/or function of the Green Space Network will
not be permitted. Given the scale of the development proposed it is not considered that the
proposal would have any adverse impacts on the character and/or function of the Green Space
Network in this area, as such the proposal is compliant with policy NE1.

Scale and design

Extension:

The proposed extension would be located to the side of the dwelling, would align with both the
front and rear elevation and would project ¢.5.7m from the existing side (north) elevation. Both
eaves and ridge height would link into the existing dwelling. Its general design, including the use of
a pitched roof and gabled end, and proposed materials would match that of the existing dwelling.
As such, the proposed extension would be architecturally compatible with the existing dwelling,

Page 187



Application Reference: 200265/DPP Page 4 of 5

and due to its scale, size, massing and positioning would not be overbearing on, or have a
detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the original house. The proposed increase
in floorspace would be substantially less than 100% on that of the original dwelling, increasing
from an original 215m? to a total of 293.5m?, including the existing conservatory — an increase of
36%. Similarly, due to the substantial garden, significantly less than 50% will be covered by
development.

Garden room/gym/car port

The second part of the proposal consists of a double car port attached to the existing garage
linking into a garden room/gym measuring c.7.2m by c.6.1m — an overall footprint of c.44m?.
Proposed materials would include vertical timber linings for the walls with a pitched tiled roof,
linking in and matching that of the existing garage. The garden room/gym would have a similar
scale and design as the existing garage. As such, the proposal is considered architecturally
compatible and would be an acceptable addition to the existing garage. Furthermore, similar to the
house extension, due to the large garden, it is considered that the proposal would not result in
overdevelopment.

The above would be in compliance with policy D1, and the final clause of policy NE2.

Residential amenity

Due to the large distance between the application property and the nearest residential dwellings at
West Hatton and The Bothy to the south, the proposal would have no impact on their residential
amenity.

Trees and Woodlands

The site is adjacent to the Three Hills Local Nature Conservation Site (LNCS), and there are
mature trees immediately beyond the boundary with the residential curtilage. This boundary is
made up of a relatively low drystone dyke. Both the proposed extension and the garden room/
gym are located at close proximity to this boundary, and thus the trees, at a distance of ¢.5.9m
and 5.6m respectively at their nearest point. The application is supported by a Tree Survey and
Arboricultural Impact Assessment. This demonstrates that eight mature beech trees are located
along the boundary, just outwith the ownership of the applicant. The proposed extension to the
dwelling would encroach into the root protection area of trees 3 and 4 whereas the proposed
garden room/gym would encroach into the root protection area (RPA) of trees 5, 6 and 7. In
addition, significant parts of the existing dwelling and garage already fall within the zone of
influence of the surveyed trees, as would both the house extension and the proposed garden
room/gym/car port.

Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) sets out that there is a general presumption against
development that will result in the loss of, or damage to, trees and woodlands that contribute to
nature conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate change adaptation and
mitigation. Due to their size and position within the LNCS, the abovementioned trees would
contribute to all of these aims. In addition, Supplementary Guidance on Trees and Woodlands
provides further guidance. This document sets out that the default position is for structures to be
constructed outwith the RPA of trees, and that an incursion in the RPA will only be considered
where there is an acceptable overriding justification for construction within the RPA and where
adequate technical information is submitted to support the technical solution proposed to avoid
any damage to the tree. In addition to the impact on theRPA, the Zone of Influence (Zol) of trees
should also be considered. This is generally taken as the distance from the bottom of a tree that is
equal to the mature height of an existing or proposed tree. Both buildings and garden ground
should generally be located outwith the Zol.

In this case, due to their proximity, both the house extension and the gym/garden room would
require the management of the existing tree canopy of trees 3, 4 and 6, and the proposal does not

Page 188



Application Reference: 200265/DPP Page 5 of 5

allow adequate space to allow natural growth to occur. Continued sustained management of the
tree canopies would be required to ensure no future conflict between these existing trees and the
proposed development. This work is not considered appropriate in this case, due to the age and
species of the trees. In addition, as set out above, policy NE5 requires development to take place
outwith the RPA of existing trees. This is even more important in cases where the affected trees
do not belong to the applicant for two reasons. Firstly, the Planning Authority should not be seen
to impose additional burdens on third parties, especially when a proposal would be contrary to
policy. Secondly, the ability of the applicant to manage future risk would be significantly reduced
as they have no automatic rights to manage the trees in a manner that may be required due to the
siting of proposed development.

As set out above, the proposal would have considerable impact on the RPA of trees 3, 4, 5, 6 and
7, which, considering their age and species would not be considered within tolerable limits, and
which could have a significant detrimental impact on their health. In addition, both the proposed
extension and garden room/gym would significantly increase the amount of development within
the Zol of trees 2, 3 and 4 for the house, and trees 5, 6, 7 and 8 for the garden room/gym. It is
generally considered that the closer a dwelling is to the centre of the Zol, the greater the likely
future impact on those trees and requirement for extensive works due to the proximity of large
trees. As such, for these reasons, it is considered that the proposal would be contrary to the
requirements of both policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) and Supplementary Guidance on Trees
and Woodlands.

Protected Species
The application site is located in an area that is generally considered suitable as a bat habitat. The
application was supported by a bat survey, which concluded that both the existing dwelling and
garage did not provide any opportunities for bat roosts, and none were observed. As such, the
proposal would not have a detrimental impact on protected species, in compliance with policy NE8
(Natural Heritage).

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

In relation to this particular application, the policies in the Proposed Aberdeen Local Development
Plan 2020 substantively reiterate those in the adopted Local Development Plan and the proposal
is acceptable in terms of both Plans for the reasons previously given.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

The proposal is considered to have a significant impact on the root protection area of a total of five
mature beech trees located just outside the application site boundary, which could have a
significant detrimental impact on their health. Furthermore, it would result in a further significant
encroachment of development within the Zone of Influence of a total of seven mature beech trees,
which would have a significant future impact on these trees due to both the potential requirement
for extensive works and the proximity of large trees to the dwelling and outbuildings. This is further
aggravated by the fact that the trees fall outwith the ownership of the applicant, as this would
impose an additional burden on a third party. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to
policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the 2017 Aberdeen Local Development Plan, policy NE5
(Trees and Woodlands) of the Proposed Local Development Plan and Supplementary Guidance
on Trees and Woodlands. There are no other material considerations that would warrant approval
of the application.

Page 189



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 190



=,
-

ol
ABERDEEN

P IR
¥ COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100235952-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Description of Proposal

Please describe accurately the work proposed: * (Max 500 characters)

Extension to dwelling house and creation of carport + sun-room.

Has the work already been started and/ or completed? *

No D Yes - Started D Yes — Completed

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Page 1 of 6

Page 191




Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Lippe Architects + Planners

Ref. Number:

First Name: *

Debbie

Last Name: *

Anderson (Lippe Architects & Planners

Telephone Number: *

01467 622785

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1

(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

st james place

Inverurie

Scotland

AB51 3UB

Email Address: *

debbie@lippe-architects.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr

Other Title:

First Name: * Douglas
Last Name: * Godsman

Company/Organisation

C/O Lippe Architects + Planners

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1

(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

St James' Place

Inverurie

United Kingdom

AB51 3UB

Email Address: *

debbie@lippe-architects.co.uk

Page 192

Page 2 of 6




Site Address Details

Aberdeen City Council

Planning Authority:

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

THE HIGHFIELD

ABERDEEN

AB15 8RX

Northing

806958

Easting

385487

Pre-Application Discussion

Have you discussed your proposal with the planning authority? *

|:| Yes No

Trees

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? *

|:| Yes No

If yes, please mark on your drawings any trees, known protected trees and their canopy spread close to the proposal site and indicate if
any are to be cut back or felled.

Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new or altered vehicle access to or from a public road? *

|:| Yes No

If yes, please describe and show on your drawings the position of any existing, altered or new access points, highlighting the changes

you proposed to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there will be any impact on these.

Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Is the applicant, or the applicant’s spouse/partner, either a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? *

D Yes No

Page 193

Page 3 of 6




Certificates and Notices

CERTIFICATE AND NOTICE UNDER REGULATION 15 — TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PROCEDURE) (SCOTLAND) REGULATION 2013

One Certificate must be completed and submitted along with the application form. This is most usually Certificate A, Form 1,
Certificate B, Certificate C or Certificate E.

Are you/the applicant the sole owner of ALL the land? * Yes |:| No

Is any of the land part of an agricultural holding? * D Yes No

Certificate Required

The following Land Ownership Certificate is required to complete this section of the proposal:

Certificate A

Land Ownership Certificate

Certificate and Notice under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

Certificate A

| hereby certify that —

(1) - No person other than myself/the applicant was an owner (Any person who, in respect of any part of the land, is the owner or is the
lessee under a lease thereof of which not less than 7 years remain unexpired.) of any part of the land to which the application relates at

the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the accompanying application.

(2) - None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of an agricultural holding

Signed: Debbie Anderson (Lippe Architects & Planners Ltd)
On behalf of: Mr Douglas Godsman
Date: 25/02/2020

Please tick here to certify this Certificate. *

Page 4 of 6

Page 194




Checklist — Application for Householder Application

Please take a few moments to complete the following checklist in order to ensure that you have provided all the necessary information
in support of your application. Failure to submit sufficient information with your application may result in your application being deemed

invalid. The planning authority will not start processing your application until it is valid.
a) Have you provided a written description of the development to which it relates?. * Yes

b) Have you provided the postal address of the land to which the development relates, or if the land in question Yes
has no postal address, a description of the location of the land? *

c) Have you provided the name and address of the applicant and, where an agent is acting on behalf of the Yes
applicant, the name and address of that agent.? *

d) Have you provided a location plan sufficient to identify the land to which it relates showing the situation of the Yes
land in relation to the locality and in particular in relation to neighbouring land? *. This should have a north point
and be drawn to an identified scale.

e) Have you provided a certificate of ownership? * Yes
f) Have you provided the fee payable under the Fees Regulations? * Yes
g) Have you provided any other plans as necessary? * Yes

Continued on the next page

DNO
I:lNO

I:‘NO

I:lNO

I:lNO

DNO
DNO

A copy of the other plans and drawings or information necessary to describe the proposals
(two must be selected). *

You can attach these electronic documents later in the process.
Existing and Proposed elevations.

Existing and proposed floor plans.

D Cross sections.

|:| Site layout plan/Block plans (including access).

Roof plan.

|:| Photographs and/or photomontages.

Additional Surveys — for example a tree survey or habitat survey may be needed. In some instances you D Yes
may need to submit a survey about the structural condition of the existing house or outbuilding.

A Supporting Statement — you may wish to provide additional background information or justification for your D Yes
Proposal. This can be helpful and you should provide this in a single statement. This can be combined with a
Design Statement if required. *

No

No

You must submit a fee with your application. Your application will not be able to be validated until the appropriate fee has been

Received by the planning authority.

Declare — For Householder Application

1, the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for planning permission as described in this form and the accompanying

Plans/drawings and additional information.
Declaration Name: Mrs Debbie Anderson (Lippe Architects & Planners Ltd)

Declaration Date: 25/02/2020

Page 195

Page 5 of 6




Payment Details

Cheque: Mr D Godsman & Mrs D Godsman , 000750
Created: 25/02/2020 13:53

Page 6 of 6

Page 196




-
{w)
ABERDEEN

P IR
¥ COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100235952-002

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):
Address 1: THE HIGHFIELD

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement: ABERDEEN

Post Code: AB15 8RX

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

806958 385487

Northing Easting

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Page 1 0of 3

Page 197




Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation:

Lippe Architects + Planners

Ref. Number:

First Name: *

Debbie

Last Name: *

Anderson (Lippe Architects & Planners

Telephone Number: *

01467 622785

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1

(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

st james place

Inverurie

Scotland

AB51 3UB

Email Address: *

debbie@lippe-architects.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr

Other Title:

First Name: * Douglas
Last Name: * Godsman

Company/Organisation

C/O Lippe Architects + Planners

Telephone Number: *

Extension Number:

Mobile Number:

Fax Number:

You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

Building Name:

Building Number:

Address 1

(Street): *

Address 2:

Town/City: *

Country: *

Postcode: *

St James' Place

Inverurie

United Kingdom

AB51 3UB

Email Address: *

debbie@lippe-architects.co.uk

Page 198

Page 2 of 3




Proposal/Application Details

Please provide the details of the original application(s) below:

Was the original application part of this proposal? * Yes D No

Application Details

Please select which application(s) the new documentation is related to.

Application: * 100235952-001, application for Householder Application, submitted on 25/02/2020

Document Details

Please provide an explanation as to why the documentation is being attached after the original application was submitted: * (Max 500
characters)

Resubmitted due to invalidation from planning permission.

Checklist — Post Submission Additional Documentation

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your application.

The additional documents have been attached to this submission. * Yes D No

Declare — Post Submission Additional Documentation

I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is a submission of Additional Documentation, and that all the information given in this
submission is true to the best of my/the applicants knowledge.

Declaration Name: Mrs Debbie Anderson (Lippe Architects & Planners Ltd)

Declaration Date: 04/03/2020

Page 3 0of 3

Page 199




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 200



APPLICATION REF NO. 200265/DPP

'BON ACCORD

Development Management

Strategic Place Planning

Business Hub 4, Marischal College, Broad Street
Aberdeen, AB10 1AB

Tel: 01224 523470 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

CITY COUNCIL

DECISION NOTICE

The Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997

Detailed Planning Permission

Debbie Anderson

Lippe Architects + Planners
4 St James Place

Inverurie

AB51 3UB

on behalf of Mr Douglas Godsman

With reference to your application validly received on 4 March 2020 for the following
development:-

Erection of single storey extension to side and formation of carport and garden
room/gym
at The Highfield, Borrowstone Road

Aberdeen City Council in exercise of their powers under the above mentioned Act
hereby REFUSE PLANNING PERMISSION for the said development in accordance
with the particulars given in the application form and the following plans and
documents:

Drawing Number Drawing Type

5632/101A Location Plan

5632/104A Site Layout (Proposed)
5632/012B Elevations and Floor Plans
5632/103 Location Plan
HWH-2007-AA Other Drawing or Plan
HWH-2007-Al Other Drawing or Plan
HWH-2007-TP Other Drawing or Plan

REASON FOR DECISION

The reasons on which the Council has based this decision are as follows:-

Page 201


mailto:pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

The proposal is considered to have a significant impact on the root protection area of
a total of five mature beech trees located just outside the application site boundary,
which could have a significant detrimental impact on their health. Furthermore, it
would result in a further significant encroachment of development within the Zone of
Influence of a total of seven mature beech trees, which would have a significant
future impact on these trees due to both the potential requirement for extensive
works and the proximity of large trees to the dwelling and outbuildings. This is further
aggravated by the fact that the trees fall outwith the ownership of the applicant, as
this would impose an additional burden on a third party. As such, the proposal is
considered contrary to policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the 2017 Aberdeen
Local Development Plan, policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) of the Proposed Local
Development Plan and Supplementary Guidance on Trees and Woodlands. There
are no other material considerations that would warrant approval of the application.

Date of Signing 6 October 2020

Dk Leweo

Daniel Lewis
Development Management Manager

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATED TO THIS DECISION

DETAILS OF ANY VARIATION MADE TO ORIGINAL PROPOSAL, AS AGREED
WITH APPLICANT (S32A of 1997 Act)

None.

RIGHT OF APPEAL
THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the planning authority —

a) to refuse planning permission;

b) to refuse approval, consent or agreement requried by a condition imposed on
a grant of planning permission;

c) to grant planning permission or any approval, consent or agreement subject to
conditions,

the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under section
43A(8) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 within three months
from the date of this notice. Any requests for a review must be made on a ‘Notice of
Review’ form available from the planning authority or at www.eplanning.scot.

Page 202


http://www.eplanning.scot/

Notices of review submitted by post should be sent to Strategic Place Planning
(address at the top of this decision notice).

SERVICE OF PURCHASE NOTICE WHERE INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY A
PLANNING DECISION

If permission to develop land is refused and the owner of the land claims that the
land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial use in it's existing state and
cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use by the carrying out of any
development that would be permitted, the owners of the land may serve on the
planning authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of the owner of the land’s
interest in the land in accordance with Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 204



Agenda Iltem 4.3

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP)

e NE1: Green Space Network

e NE2: Green Belt

e NE5: Trees and Woodland

e NES8: Natural Heritage

e D1: Quality Placemaking by Design;

Supplementary Guidance

Trees and Woodlands
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/6.2.PolicySG.TreesWoodlands.pdf

Other Material Considerations

Scottish Planning Policy (2014)
https://www.gov.scot/publications/scottish-planning-policy/

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (2020)
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-
sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.aspx?/ID=1510&sID=197

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (2020)
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-
plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678

Page 205


https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/sites/default/files/6.2.PolicySG.TreesWoodlands.pdf
https://www.gov.scot/publications/scottish-planning-policy/
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.aspx?lID=1510&sID=197
http://www.aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.aspx?lID=1510&sID=197
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678
https://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/services/planning-and-building/local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan/aberdeen-local-development-plan-review#3678

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 206



Agenda ltem 4.4

-
{w)
ABERDEEN

L

N Tl
COUNCIL

Marischal College Planning & Sustainable Development Business Hub 4, Ground Floor North Broad Street Aberdeen AB10 1AB Tel:
01224 523 470 Fax: 01224 636 181 Email: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100340299-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) D Applicant Agent

Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Lippe Architects + Planners

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
First Name: * Lippe Architects Building Name:
Last Name: * & Planners Ltd Building Number: 4
Telephone Number: = | 01467 622785 '(“80{‘:;2?)51 St. James Place
Extension Number: Address 2:
Mobile Number: Town/City: * Inverurie
Fax Number: Country: * Scotland
Postcode: * AB513UB
Email Address: * admin@lippe-architects.co.uk

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual D Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 1 of 5

Page 207



Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * Douglas Building Number: 4

Last Name: * Godsman :(Asdttrjer(;?)sj St James' Place
Company/Organisation cl/o Lippe Architects and Planners Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: * Inverurie
Extension Number: Country: * United Kingdom
Mobile Number: Postcode: * ABS13UB

Fax Number:

Email Address: * admin@lippe-architects.co.uk

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: Aberdeen City Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: THE HIGHFIELD

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement: ABERDEEN

Post Code: AB15 8RX

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 806958 Easting 385487

Page 208

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Appeal against the refusal of detailed planning permission for erection of single storey extension to side and formation of carport
and garden room/gym.

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application.

|:| Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

|:| No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

The report of handling does not discuss the points Astells and Lippes made about root protection and the tolerances are well
within those recommended in British Standards. We do not agree that the extensions would “significantly” increase the amount of
development in the ZOI and again points made are not adequately addressed. Transport Scotland does not accept that the trees
present a danger to the house.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the Yes D No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Since the application we contacted Transport Scotland as the adjacent trees are in their ownership. We have correspondence
from Transport Scotland that the trees do present a danger to the house. We have also included an updated drawing, which
although not in front of the officer, was the drawing which all the supporting tree reports, information, drawings and assessments
were based on. This is detailed in the appeal statement.

Page 3 of 5

Page 209




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Planning Appeal Statement Report of Handling Tree Survey and Drawings Planning Drawings Correspondence from Transport
Scotland

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 200265
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 25/02/2020

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 06/10/2020

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

Yes D No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * D Yes No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * Yes D No

If there are reasons why you think the local Review Body would be unable to undertake an unaccompanied site inspection, please
explain here. (Max 500 characters)

Page 4 of 5

Page 210




Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name Yes |:| No |:| N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Declare — Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name: Mr Lippe Architects & Planners Ltd

Declaration Date: 23/12/2020

Page 50of 5

Page 211




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 212



L I|ppearch|tec:ts

+planners

Appeal against refusal detailed planning
permission for erection of single storey
extension to side and formation of carport and
garden room/gym

at

The Highfield, Borrowstone Road, Aberdeen,
AB15 8RX

Aberdeen City Council planning reference
200265/DPP

December 2020

1

Page 213



L Ilppearch|tects

+planners

Contents

1 - Background, Proposal and Grounds of Appeal
2 - Planning Policy and Material Considerations

3 — Discussion and Response to Reasons for Refusal

2

Page 214



L ||ppearch|tects

+planners

Appeal Productions

Appeal Document 1 — Application Form

Appeal Document 2 - Location Plan 5632/101A

Appeal Document 3 — Existing Site Plan 5632/102/A

Appeal Document 4 — Existing Elevations and Site 5632/01A

Appeal Document 5 — Proposed Site Plan 5632/104/A

Appeal Document 6 — Proposed Plans 5632/012C

Appeal Document 7 — Proposed Floor Plans, Elevations and Site 5632/012A

Appeal Document 8 — Proposed 3D Visuals

Appeal Document 9 — Tree Survey Report

Appeal Document 10 - Arboricultural Assessment

Appeal Document 11 - Tree Protection and Management Plan

Appeal Document 12 — Arboricultural Impact

Appeal Document 13 — Comments from Environment Planner 5.8.20

Appeal Document 14 — Response from Astell Associates 25.8.20

Appeal Document 15 — Further response from Environment Planner 1.9.20

Appeal Document 16 — Letter from Lippe Architects and Planners to Transport Scotland 14.10.20
Appeal Document 17 — Letter from Transport Scotland to Lippe Architects and Planners 29.10.20
Appeal Document 18 — Letter from Lippe Architects and Planners to Transport Scotland 30.10.20
Appeal Document 19 - Transport Scotland letter to Lippe Architects and Planners 19.11.20
Appeal Document 20 - Report of Handling

Appeal Document 21 - Refusal Notice Dated 6 October 2020

Page 215



L lippearchitects

+planners

1 - Background, Proposal and Grounds of Appeal

11

1.2

13

1.4

This appeal relates to Aberdeen City Council’s refusal of planning application
reference 200265/DPP on 6 October 2020 for detailed planning permission for
erection of single storey extension to side and formation of car port and garden
room/gym at The Highfield, Borrowstone Road, Aberdeen, AB15 8RX.

The reason for refusal states that the proposal is considered to have a significant
impact on the root protection area of a total of five mature beech trees located just
outside the application site boundary, which could have a significant detrimental
impact on their health. Furthermore, it would result in a further significant
encroachment of development within the Zone of Influence of a total of seven mature
beech trees, which would have a significant future impact on these trees due to both
the potential requirement for extensive works and the proximity of large trees to the
dwelling and outbuildings. This is further aggravated by the fact that the trees fall
outwith the ownership of the applicant, as this would impose an additional burden on
a third party. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to policy NE5 (Trees and
Woodlands) of the 2017 Aberdeen Local Development Plan, policy NE5 (Trees and
Woodlands) of the Proposed Local Development Plan and Supplementary Guidance on
Trees and Woodlands. There are no other material considerations that would warrant
approval of the application.

The appeal site is an existing large and modern detached bungalow with detached
garage set within a large garden. The site is located adjacent to two other
dwellinghouses at West Hatton to the south which area accessed via the same road
leading from the A944 to Clinterty. The Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route is located
to the east. West Hatton Wood is located to north of the site. The eight trees to the
north of the boundary of the property and which have been assessed as part of this
planning application are in the ownership of Transport Scotland and were purchased
to provide mitigation against ecological impacts of the AWPR project and to counter
the severance and fragmentation of habitat as a consequence of the scheme.

The proposal involves extending the existing bungalow with a single storey extension
containing a master bedroom, dressing area and ensuite bathroom on its north side
towards the northern boundary and extending the existing garage with a car port,
garden room and gym to its western side parallel to the northern boundary.

Page 216



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

The appellants are an elderly couple who need a larger bedroom with an en-suite
bathroom as they cannot extend into the roof space and want accommodation and
facilities on the ground floor. There are no other areas where such an extension can
be provided to meet these needs or where you can easily extend due to the existing
septic tank, proximity to the boundary and wanting to avoid going any closer to the
AWPR. The sun room on the garage is to create space for the appellants to be able to
site and enjoy their garden without being disturbed by noise from the AWPR which
now sits directly behind the site. Again, this is the only location where this extension
can be located.

The eight trees to the north of the site which were surveyed to support the application
are mature beech trees. The tree survey identified that trees 5 and 7 are already
within the Root Protection Area (RPA) of the existing house. Additional trees 3 and 4
would fall within the RPA of the proposed house extension and additional tree 6 would
fall within the RPA of the extension to the garage. With regard to the Zone of Influence
(Zol), the existing house and garage are already within the Zol of trees 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7.
The proposed extensions would be within the Zol of additional trees 2 and 8.

The report of handling states that the default position of the Supplementary Guidance
is that an incursion into the RPA will only be considered where there is adequate
technical information submitted to support the technical solution proposed to avoid
any damage to the tree. In addition the ZOI of trees should also be considered and
that both buildings and garden ground should generally be located outwith the Zol.

It continues that due to their proximity, both the house and both extensions would
require the management of the existing tree canopy of trees 3, 4 and 6 and the
proposal does not allow adequate space to allow natural growth to occur. Continued
sustained management of the tree canopies would be required to ensure no future
conflict between these existing trees and the proposed development. This work is not
considered appropriate in this case, due to the age and species of the trees. This is
even more important in cases where the affected trees do not belong to the applicant
for two reasons. Firstly, the Planning Authority should not be seen to impose
additional burdens on third parties, especially when a proposal would be contrary to
policy. Secondly, the ability of the applicant to manage future risk would be
significantly reduced as they have no automatic rights to manage the trees in a manner
that may be required due to the siting of proposed development.

It further states that the proposal would have considerable impact on the RPA of trees
3,4, 5, 6 and 7 which, considering their age and species would not be considered within
tolerable limits, and which could have a significant detrimental impact on their health.
In addition, both the proposed extension and garden room/gym, would significantly
increase the amount of development within the Zol of trees 2, 3 and 4 for the house
and trees 5, 6, 7 and 8 for the garden room. It is generally considered that the closer

5

Page 217



1.10

1.11

a dwelling is to the centre of the Zol, the greater the likely future impact on those trees
and requirement for extensive work due to the proximity of large trees. As such, for
these reasons, it is considered that the proposal would be contrary to the requirements
of both Policy NE5 (Trees and Woodlands) and Supplementary Guidance on Trees and
Woodlands.

The grounds of appeal are that:

The reason for refusal is weak as it does not specifically say what is unacceptable
about the proposal in terms of the information which was provided to assess and
mitigate for Root Protection Areas and Zone of Influence

The proposal is not in conflict with the Aberdeen City LDP Policy NE5 Trees and
Woodlands or the LDP Supplementary Guidance on Trees and Woodlands as
assessments of the development impact on the RPA’s and the Zol have been
adequately addressed and mitigations proposed

The house, garage and part of the garden are already located within the RPA and Zol
of some of the trees, these trees have not been adversely affected by this and the
proposed extensions would not have a considerable or significant impact on the trees
There is no alternative location within the site to locate the extensions and provide
the appellant with valuable living accommodation on the ground floor

The layout, siting and design of the proposal is otherwise acceptable as is the
development in all other respects

The third party in this case is Transport Scotland who have said that the trees are not
a safety concern and there is no need to remove the trees bearing in mind the
development proposals. Transport Scotland itself will monitor and manage the trees
as any management necessary to maintain the health of the trees is their
responsibility

The Council’'s Environment Planner is unwilling to deviate from objecting to
development which is in the RPA or Zol of trees when the British Standard
BS5837:2012 requires a flexible approach to be taken. No real assessment has taken
place of the site, the specific characteristics of the trees or the proposed mitigation

With regard to the drawings which have been refused, for the avoidance of doubt, it
should be noted that drawing 5632/012B which is the most up to date drawing which
was submitted should have been updated with drawing number 5632/012C which was
altered to reflect the tree survey carried out by Astell Associates and importantly to
move the garage extension forward by 1m to reduce any impact on the Zol. While this
drawing had not been submitted to the Planning Authority, all the tree survey
information and drawings by Astell Associates did reflect this and it is those drawings
which the officer and environment officer used to assess the planning application.
While drawing 5632/012C is a new drawing or new information for the purposes of
this appeal which the officer would not have had in front of them in determining the

Page 218



planning application, all other information and drawings pertaining to the trees is
correct, up to date and as submitted.

Page 219



L ||ppearch|tects

+planners

2 - Planning Policy and Material Considerations

2.1

2.2

2.3

Several policies from the Aberdeen City LDP 2017 apply to the proposal namely:
Policy D1 Quality Placemaking by Design

Policy NE1 Green Space Network

Policy NE2 Green Belt

Policy NE5 Trees and Woodland

Policy NE8 Natural Heritage

However, the appeal only turns on one of these policies, NE5, and the associated
Supplementary Guidance, Trees and Woodlands.

Policy NE5 - Trees and Woodlands There is a presumption against all activities and
development that will result in the loss of, or damage to, trees and woodlands that
contribute to nature conservation, landscape character, local amenity or climate
change adaptation and mitigation. Permanent and temporary buildings and services
should be sited so as to minimise adverse impacts on existing and future trees.
Appropriate measures should be taken for the protection and long term management
of existing trees and new planting both during and after construction. Where trees
may be impacted by a proposed development, a Tree Protection and Mitigation Plan
will need to be submitted and agreed with the Council before any development
activity commences on site. This should include details of compensatory planting,
temporary earth works and any site preparation. Where applicable, root protection
areas should be established and protective barriers erected prior to any work
commencing. See relevant Supplementary Guidance for more information. Where
appropriate, the Council will seek to promote the creation of new woodland and the
planting of native trees in association with development. The majority of development
sites offer opportunities for the planting of trees and hedgerows. Details of tree and
hedgerow planting should be submitted as part of the proposal’s landscape strategy.

Page 220



Tree Constraints Plan (TCP)

2.4

2.5

Following the completion of the tree survey, a Tree Constraints Plan needs to be
produced by the arboriculturalist. This is a design tool that is used to inform the
proposed layout of the new development. When this is submitted with the planning
application, this will be used to show how due consideration has been given to the
retention of trees as part of the proposed layout. The TCP will include information
highlighting the constraints above and below ground posed by the trees.

The plan will show the constraints above ground posed by the current physical size of
the tree, taking into account their movement in the wind, future growth, perceived
safety concerns, shade cast by the trees and the existing crown spread. The constraints
below ground are represented by the Root Protection Area (RPA). The RPA is used to
inform the construction exclusion zone.

Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AlA) and Design Considerations

2.6

Once the detailed design proposals have been drawn up, an AlA needs to be carried
out in order to assess the trees against the proposals. This assessment should detail
that structures are not sited within Root Protection Areas and that new
buildings/structures are sited clear of ultimate crown spread;

Construction within Root Protection Areas

2.7

2.8

BS5837:2012 states that the default position for structures should be outwith the Root
Protection Area (RPA) of trees to be retained. Where there is an overriding
justification for construction within the RPA technical solutions might be available that
prevent damage to the tree.

An incursion into the RPA will only be considered where there is an acceptable
overriding justification for construction within the RPA and where adequate technical
information is submitted to support the technical solution proposed and that the
technical solution will prevent damage to the tree. For an overriding justification to be
accepted the proposal must be considered to deliver social, economic or
environmental benefits that benefit the wider community.

Proximity of Structures and Infrastructure to Trees

2.9

BS5837:2012, Subsection 5.3 outlines the need to consider the ultimate height,
canopy spread and the available rooting environment of existing and proposed trees.
Buildings and structures should be sited to allow adequate space for a tree’s natural
development and at the same time reduce future pressure for removal of trees.
Buildings and associated infrastructure, including garden ground, should generally be
located out with the zone of influence of existing and proposed trees. The zone of

Page 221



2.10

influence is generally considered to be the distance from the bottom of a tree that is
equal to the mature height of an existing or proposed tree.

In certain cases the zone of influence may need to be increased to account for
particular development site scenarios or to help retain important characteristics
associated with individual or groups of trees and woodlands. For example; the zone of
influence may need to be increased between buildings and infrastructure proposed in
proximity to woodlands to limit the impact of development on the neighbouring
woodland and to preserve woodland edge habitats.

Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statements

2.11

Upon finalising the design layout for the proposed development, a method and plan
demonstrating how the trees on the site will be adequately protected during the
construction phase of the development will be required. This information is often
required through the conditions of the planning permission and these are used to
enforce the protection measures.

10

Page 222



L I|ppearch|tects

+planners

3 — Discussion and Response to Reasons for Refusal

3.1

The officer has failed to fully assess and discuss the various information, surveys and
drawings related to the trees in refusing the application. Extensive survey and
assessment work was carried out and presented to the officer and the environment
planner to demonstrate avoidance of damage to the trees, yet little, if any of it is
discussed in the report of handling with any justification as to why the development
cannot be approved.

Root Protection Areas

3.2

3.3

3.4

The officer says the extensions would have a considerable impact on the RPA of trees
3,4,5,6and 7, however trees 5 and 7 are already within the RPA and it is incorrect to
say that the additional impact on trees 5 and 7 and the new impact on trees 3, 4 and
6 would be considerable, when you properly consider the tree survey and information
submitted.

With regard to Root Protection Areas, the tree survey report dated 7 July 2020
highlights that the proposed house extension will intrude into the RPA of beech tree
3 by less than 0.5m and into the RPA of beech tree 4 by 5m. The intrusion of the
extension into the RPA of tree 3 will not affect the health of the tree. The intrusion of
the extension into the RPA of tree 4 is less than 5% of the total RPA. The destruction
of the rooting area in a small segment of the rooting system will be accommodated by
the anastomosis of roots between trees 1-4. There is also a woodland glade to the
north, and the beech tree roots can expand into this area to make good the small
percentage root loss in this area. Cellular confinement system will be installed outwith
the foundation line as shown on plan HWH-2007-TP. This will protect the root plates
of trees 3 and 4 during the construction of the house extension.

Less than 2% of the RPA of trees 5, 6 and 7 are affected by the construction of the
extension to the carport to create the garden room and gym extension. The root
plates of these trees have an area of open ground to the north and west to expand
their root systems. These are vigorous and healthy trees and damage to this small
area of root plate will have no impact on their health. Cellular confinement system
will be laid down over the RPAs of the trees to protect the tree roots during

11

Page 223



3.5

3.6

construction. Atree protection fence will be erected to prevent any incursion into the
root protection areas during construction.

The Supplementary Guidance default position is that an incursion in the RPA will only
be considered where there is an acceptable overriding justification for construction in
the RPA and where adequate technical information supports the solution proposed to
avoid damage to the tree. The appellants are an elderly couple who need a larger
bedroom with an en-suite bathroom as they cannot extend into the roof space and
want accommodation and facilities on the ground floor. There are no other areas
where such an extension can be provided to meet these needs or where you can easily
extend. The sun room on the garage is to create space for the appellants to be able
to site and enjoy their garden without being disturbed by noise from the AWPR which
now sits directly behind the site. Again, this is the only location where this extension
can be located. The planner has not discussed any of the above points in detail or fully
assessed the tree survey which clearly demonstrates that while there is an incursion
into the RPA of trees 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 this is minimal and well within within tolerances
allowed by British Standard BS5837:2012 and this has not been fully acknowledged or
assessed by the officer or the environment planner.

The British Standard BS5837:2012 states that “there is no particular distance that a
structure should be away from trees”. The arboriculturalist who carried out the tree
survey report and recommendations has used his experience and assessment - of over
40 years - to say that this development is within acceptable limits but the officer, and
the environment planner, have not said why they disagree in any detail. Even if there
is damage to the root plate of the trees this will have no impact on their health as their
root systems can expand to the north and west. Cellular confinement systems at both
extensions will also protect the root plates. Branch thinning can be carried out
without damaging the trees. It should be added that the root plate extent has already
been compromised by the installation of the greenhouse and oil tank at the house.

Zone of Influence

3.7

3.8

Turning now to the Zone of Influence, the assertion that the extension would
significantly increase the amount of development within the Zol of trees 2-8 is not a
true or accurate assessment of the development within the Zol. Five trees 3, 4,5, 6
and 7 are already within the Zol of the house and with only two additional trees 2 and
8 encroaching on the Zol of the extended house and garage is not what can be
described as a significant increase in the amount of development within the Zol.

The other important consideration when considering impact on Zol which has not
been adequately addressed or assessed by the officer, is that the Supplementary
Guidance says “Both buildings are garden should generally be outwith the Zol”. This
clearly does not say that both buildings and garden must not be within the Zol

12

Page 224



3.9

especially when these areas where the extensions are proposed are already within the
Zol as it effects the garden of the property. It is therefore clear that the conclusion to
refuse the application is not a reasonable stance to have taken.

Important information about the trees, site, roots and wind pattern have not been
taken into account. The branches in this area are long and thin and the likelihood of
serious damage is small. The main winds are from the south and south-west, and the
trees, if blown over, are likely to fall to the north and north-east into the open
woodland to the north. The trees are close to the house so they do not have time to
gather much momentum to damage the house or extensions if they did fall. Beech
tree roots will also be joined, they are not individual entities. In addition, the existing
garage was also built after the trees had matured.

Third parties

3.10

3.11

The owner of the trees in this case is Transport Scotland who purchased them in
relation to AWPR works. A letter was sent to Transport Scotland on 14 October 2020
asking for the trees to be removed to avoid any risk of fall onto the Highfield.
Transport Scotland did not agree that the trees were a danger to the dwellinghouse
as contained within their response dated 29 October 2020. A further letter to
Transport Scotland on 30 October 2020 clarified that the existing house and garage
were located within the Zone of Influence of the trees. The response from Transport
Scotland Roads Directorate on 19 November 2020 accepted that part of the property
at the Highfield is within the Zone of Influence of a number of trees. It is also very
clear from the response that Transport does not agree that the trees present a
significant or imminent danger to the existing property.

While it would clearly be of assistance to the appellant if Transport Scotland agreed
the trees were a danger and also agreed on that basis to remove them, the
disagreement of Transport Scotland that the trees present a danger to the house, or
indeed the proposed extensions, and that they do not require to be removed,
strengthens the appeal that the extending the house and the garage would be
acceptable and that planning permission should accordingly be granted.

Policy and Supplementary Guidance Considerations

3.12

It should be noted that while the officer says that they should not be seen to impose
additional burdens on third parties, there is an inherent flaw with the Supplementary
Guidance as property owners will take trees down if they are in Zol’s for fear they will
be liable for any damage to a neighbouring property should a tree fall. In this respect
representations have been made to the Proposed Aberdeen City Local Development
Plan challenging the Policy and SG as they go above and beyond the requirements of
BS5837:2012 and the matter will therefore be scrutinised through the forthcoming

13

Page 225



LDP Examination. The imposition of a blanket approach will sterilise development in
the City. British Standards are clear that there is no particular distance a tree should
not be away from development. The better approach is to assess development on a
case by case basis and to consider and look at all of the site, trees, ground and root
conditions and prevailing winds which is exactly what we have done in this case but
which the officer has not fully or properly understood or addressed.

Conclusion

3.13

3.14

3.15

At no time did the officers explain why the development would be unacceptable and
officers did not take into proper account the assessments and mitigations proposed
as required by British Standards in determining the planning application. Astell
Associates further responded to comments made by officers to further demonstrate
that the development would not adversely affect the trees. To bring this appeal to a
conclusion, these are noted below.

The first comment from the officer states that the proposed house extension, gym and
garden room will require the management of the existing tree canopy of trees 3, 4 and
6 due to their current proximity. The proposal does not allow adequate space to allow
natural growth to occur. Continued sustained management of the tree canopies will
be required to ensure no further conflict between the existing tree stock and the
proposed developments. Such work is not considered appropriate with regard to the
age and species of the trees present. In response, Astell Associates replied that these
are mature trees and their canopies will not be growing vigorously. Continued
sustained management will not be necessary as the branch tips can be removed to
thin canopies back without damaging the trees, as per British Standards. Beeches
respond well to thinning as can be seen by tree work on beeches throughout Scotland.
These trees would have had their canopies cut back by the owners (appellant) of this
adjacent property (Highfield) if they had wished to do so, but they like the branch
screen.

The second comment from the officer states that Policy NE5 requires development to
take place outwith the root protection areas of existing tree stock. In response, Astell
Associates replied that in this situation the extension is to enlarge an existing house.
The ground has been disturbed around the house during its construction and also
during construction of the greenhouse and the oil tank. This will have reduced the
extent of the root plate in the direction of the existing house. The land to the north
has few trees, and the roots of trees 1-7 have room to expand in this direction. The
root protection areas of trees 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 are only slightly impacted and the
amount of root protection are affected is well within the tolerances discussed in BS
5837:2012. The beech tree roots form an interconnected web of water and mineral
uptake and transmission of soluble compounds through their interconnecting
mycorrhiza. These eight trees form a ‘gestalt’ entity underground and should not be

14

Page 226



3.16

3.17

treated as a line of individual trees. They are interconnected with areas of open
grassland to the north which their roots can colonise further. The small area of
incursion into the root plates will not impact the health or the stability of these trees.
The incursion of these buildings into the theoretical root protection area will not make
these trees more liable to be blown over by winds.

The third and final comment from the officer states that it is considered that the closer
a dwelling is to the centre of the Zol, the greater the likely future impact on trees and
requirement for extensive works due to the proximity of large trees. In response, Astell
Associates replied that the garage and house are within the Zol and this has not
resulted in extensive, or in fact any, works on these trees, even though the applicant
has the legal right to remove branches over their garden. The impact on the Zol will
be the same, as the Zol discusses the major problem of trees falling towards houses.
In this situation, the prevailing winds come from the south and south-west with a
result that the trees would be blown to the north and north-west. This can be seen in
the area by a mature beech tree that has fallen to the north. Obviously there are no
problems if a structure is outwith the Zol but the British Standard 5837:2012 addresses
problems of proximity and incursions into the root plates of trees. This discusses how
these problems can be addressed and in certain instances can be adequately catered
for by using arboricultural methods. The British Standards do not just draw a line on
a plan, but say “there is no particular distance that a structure should be away from a
tree”.

To conclude, the above information and analysis demonstrates that planning
permission should be granted and we therefore respectfully request that this appeal
is upheld and planning permission is granted.

15

Page 227



16

Page 228



	Agenda
	1.1 Procedure Notice
	2.1 Erection of 1.5 storey detached domestic garage - Fairhill, 275 North Deeside Road, Milltimber, Aberdeen - 200544
	2.2 Delegated Report, Original Application Form and Decision Notice
	200544DPP - Decision Notice
	200544DPP - Delegated Report

	2.3 Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted
	2.4 Notice of Review with Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant / Agent
	200544DPP - Review Statement

	3.1 Formation of pitched roof to an existing garage to from store and single storey workshop extension to rear - 2 Gladstone Place Aberdeen - 200557
	3.2 Delegated Report, Original Application Form and Decision Notice
	200557DPP - Application Form
	200557DPP - Decision Notice

	3.3 Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted
	3.4 Notice of Review with Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant / Agent
	200557DPP - Review Statement 1
	200557DPP - Review Statement 2
	200557DPP -  Review Statement 3

	4.1 Erection of single storey extension to side and formation of carport and garden room/gym - the Highfield, Borrowstone Road, Aberdeen - 200265
	4.2 Delegated Report, Original Application Form and Decision Notice.
	200265DPP - Application Form
	200265DPP - Application Form (additonal info)
	200265DPP - Decision Notice

	4.3 Planning Policies Referred to in Documents Submitted
	4.4 Notice of Review with Supporting Information Submitted by Applicant / Agent
	200265DPP - Review Statement


